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Directors’ Report

Principal Activities

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V and Subsidianes (the "Company”) 1s a distributor of specialty
medical products matinly manufactured by other affiliated businesses in the United States and Singapore
The Company offers a broad line of medical devices for Interventional Radiology, Vascular Surgery,
Interventional Cardiology and Cntical Care procedures The Company's products are sold throughout
Europe, the Middle East and Africa through a combination of direct sales representatives and premier
distnbutors

Results and Appropriations

Netincome and total comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
were €5,954,187 and €(1,977,468), respectively

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had total equ:ty of €19,470,990 and €11,098,371,
respectively, and the Company's management board does not recommend the payment of a dividend to
the Company's shareholder at this time

Business Developments

The Company was Incorporated in December 2010 to conduct the activities referred to in the preceding
paragraph in Europe, the Middle East, and Afrnca which had been previously conducied by other affiliates
of the Company's ultimate holding company - Argon Medical Devices Helding, Inc - following its
acquisitton of the Cntical Care systems business of Becton, Dickinson, and Company (“BD")

In April 2013, the Company further expanded its product ine when the Company ultimate holding
company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc , acguired the Interventional Products Business of
Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc (“Angiotech®) The Company participated in this acquisition by acquinng
the outstanding equity interests of Angiotech S L , Angiotech GmbH, Angiotech Switzerland SA, and
Angiotech SARL, which had distnbuted the acquired business’ products across Europe, the Middle East,
and Afnca

The Company has a number of product ines that requure a sales and marketing strategy tailored to our
customers n order to deliver tugh-quality and cost-effective products To help broaden awareness, the
Company's sales team participates in several educational symposia and provides training to customers
A majonty of the sales and marketing approach in the region I1s direct sales, aithough it vanes depending
on each country's size and state of development.

Research and Development Activities
The Company does not engage in any substantial research and development activities Research and

development activities are conducted by affilates of the Campany's ultimate holding company - Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc - and the Company may benefit from those activibes in future penods




Workforce and Corporate Governance Development Activities

Workforce: The Company's workforce consists pnmarily of employees engaged in sefling and distnbution
funchions which are consistent with the Company’s pnncipal activity of distnbuting specialty medical
products throughout Europe, the Middle East, and Afnca The Company also has a limited number of
employees in the supply chain and finance functions that provide support to the commercial market-facing
activities conducted by the Company The total size and size of the Company's workforce by country is
contingent upon many factors, including but not imited to changes in the Company's revenues and/or
profitability in total and by country, and changes in either factor may necessitate changes in the
composition of the Company’s workforce in the upcoming fiscal year Management believes that

the Company's existing number of employees 1s sufficient in the current fiscal year There is no significant
employee turnover during the year

Corporate Governance: The board consists totally of two women The Company has no intention m the
short termn period to change this structure  However, when an opportunity Is present and makes practical
business sense, the Company will consider the men to womean ratio of the board, but nomination will be
regardless of gender or culture

Financing Activities

The purchase pnice of $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) due to PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN) In
conjunction with the acquisition of Argen Medical Devices Danmark ApS 1s converted from short-term
payable into a long-term note payable with due date on Dacember 31, 2018 A 1% mnterest expense is
recognized by the Company n connection with this long-term note payable arrangement with PBN

Risks and Uncertainties

In compliance with the Dutch Accounting Standard 400, the Company addresses risks and uncertaintes
within the following sections

Methodology

The nsk management policies and procedures are key to ensuring proper management of the Company
All layers of the orgamization understand that nsk management 1s an important process Risk
management 1s mainly camed cut by the organizatton’s executives Risk management is a fixed item on
the agenda of senior management meetings held on a regular basis All employees contribute to
identfying nsks and the assoctated control measures Contrnbutions to improving sk management are
rewarded in the people performance process Risks are analyzed on an annual basis and any new risks
are assessed and incorporated during the yearly planning discussion The Vice President on Sales who
also acts as the General Manager 1s responsible for nsk management and with the help of the finance
team, conducts biennial meetings for the Company's management board and key employees

The most sigruficant risks and the nsk reduction measures taken

The Company's activihes expose # to a vansty of operational and financial risks foreign currency
exchange nsk, credit nsk, hquidiy risk, cash flow interest rate sk and concentration nsk. The Company's
overall nsk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance as well as its group's overall
performance




Appetite for significant nsks

The current nsk profile is determined on the basis of this nsk analysis and the control measures The
current nsk profile 1s assessed and compared with the desired nsk profile  Action plans are drawn up for
each nsk if the current profile 1s graded at a hugher level than the desired nsk profile to further
control/reduce the existing exposure

Current Desired

Risk Risk
Risks Controls Profile Profile

Foreign currency exchange Partly self-hedge in the current and pnor years Medium Low

nsk
Plan to enter in a forward currency contract in

subsequent year

Credit nsk Regular financial review of credit reserves Low Low

Constant and effective communication with
customers through the sales workforce

Liquidity nsk Regular cash flow review Low Low
Cash flow interest rate nsk Constant communication with affilated Low Low
companies holding the Company's promissory
notes
Concentration nsk Hired new employee with full dedication in High Medium
maintaining close refationship with regional
customers

The Company, its registered branches, and its wholly owned subsidianies operate internationally and
conduct transactions 1n multiple foreign currencies which create vanous foreign currency exposures
primanly with respect to the United States dollar, Singapore dollar, Brit'sh pound sterhng, Swadish krona,
and Danish krone, Polish zloty, Swiss franc, and Norwegian krone The Company’s principal currency
exposures relate to the Euro and the United States dollar associated with long-term toan with affiliated
entties Our objective 1s to mimimize the volatiity of our exposure o these nsks through normal operating
activities which 1s partly self-hedge The Company does not hedge these foreign currency exposures and
recognized foreign currency transaction gains and losses in its consolidated statements of comprehensive
income Moreover, the Company's current policy is to not hedge substantially all of its' US dollar-
denominated debt and cost of sales against changes in foreign exchange rates considenng the long-term
nature of the US dollar-denominated debt and high turmnover of inventory which are mostiy purchased
directly from affihated companies Management continues to evaluate the impact of the devaluation of
Euro against United States dollar and its tmpact at the group level




Credit nsk arises from cash and cash equivalent on deposit with banks as well as credit exposures to
customers such as n the case of outstanding recewvables and committed transactions Credit nsk on
qutstanding receivables is managed on a consolidated bas:s by the Company’s ulhmate holding company
and sts affillates in order to mitigate the risk of counterparty default and concentration The ultimate
holding company and its affiates manages and analyses the credit nsk for each of the Company's
customers before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered The credit nsk on
hquid funds i1s imited because the counterparty is a bank with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies

Cash flow forecasting is performed at the local level as well as on a consolidated basis by the Cornpany's
ultimate holding company and its affikates which includes monitoring rolling forecasts of hiquidity needs to
ensure the Company has sufficient cash to meet its cperational needs The Company believes that its
liquidity nsks are low given its ulimate halding company's intention to support the Company's liquidity
needs in order for the Company to meet its operational needs

The Company has no significant interest-beanng assets or labilites except for its promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc and PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S which mature on Apnl 12, 2018 and
December 31, 2018, respectively, and bear interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yeld and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium

In the nermal course of business, the Company provides credit to customers in the healith care industry,
perform credit evaluations of these customers, and maintain allowances for potential credit losses, which
have histoncally been adequate compared to actual losses In 2015, the Company has one Middle East
customer that represents 10% or more of our total net sales or accounts recewvable, net The Company
continues to do business with customers in certan Middle East countnes that have expenenced
deteriorations in credit and economic conditions These conditions have resulted in, and may continue to
result in, a reduction in value and an increase In the average length of ime that it takes to collect accounts
receivable outstanding in these countries In addition, the Company may also be impacted by dechnes in
soveregn credit ratings or sovereign defauits in these countries Extreme competition in certain markets
could cause the Company significant effort to increase marketing and other expendstures and prevent the
Company from increasing prices to recover higher costs and address inflation thereby reducing product
margins or lose market share Any of the foregoing could have a significant adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations It 1s the policy of the Company to
observe the highest standards of ethice, honesty and integnty  All employees are required to uphold
these standards and must not have any personal interest that canflicts in any way with the interest of the
Company and its shareholders The Company has robust ethical guidelines which are illustrated in the
Company’s Human Resource Handbook outlining specific examples of ant-bribery and foreign corrupt
practices act This handbook 1s dissemmated to new employees upon hinng  Stnct adherence to these
policies 1s constantly communicated through vanous means such as electronic correspondence, board
postings and formal meetings to serve as effective reminder to all employees who are located in vanous
parts of the globe Moreover, the Company has an active whistleblower program which protects and
encourages employees to repart any senous vialation in the Company's policies or external laws and
regulations whether in person or anonymously




Quantification of the impact on the result and financial position if the nsks matenalize

Foreign curency exchange nsk

A sensitivity analysis surrounding the impact to the Company’s profitability as a resuit of favorable and
unfavorable fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is disclosed in the footnotes (Note 4) to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements

Credit nsk
The maximum exposure to credit nsk i1s represented by the carying amount of each financial asset in the
Company's balance sheet

Liguedity nsk

Excluding related party balances, the Company has a ratio of liquid asset to current liabilities of 3 6 and

4 2 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively These hquidity asset ratios are considerably high
compared with simitar compantes in the healthcare industry Management aiso beheves that ¢ has
sufficient access to its ultimate holding company's funds for emergency purposes As such, no sensitivity
analysis 1s performed

Cash flow interest rate nsk
The Company's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates  As such, no sensitivity analysis 1s performed

Concentration nsk

The Company sells mare than 10% of its products in the Middle East market Should this market
collapse, revenue would fall considerably Moreaver, a sharp fall in pnces or sales in this region will
negatively affect the results of the Company Should the market contract by 50%, this would bring about a
€3 milion decrease in revenue with EBITDA declining by €1 3 million

Risks and uncertainties having a major impact in the past financial year and the consequences
The Company’s nsks and uncertainties have had no major Impact in the past financial year

Current or planned improvements in the risk management system

The nsk management methodology meets the wishes and requirements of the management of

the Company The Company has implemented a robust ant-fraud policy to detect and prevent fraud and
violations of applicable laws, which includes a stnct requirement prohibiting our employees and agents
from violating these laws  With these polices, there remains some degree of nisk that improper conduct
could occur, thereby exposing us to potential labiity and the costs associated with investigating potential
misconduct

Use of Financial Instruments
The Company's use of financial instruments s hmited to the extension of credit {o its customers in the

ordinary course of business, cash on deposit at banks, and to the financing actvities undertaken with
affihates of the Company's uttimate holding company, Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc




The risk posed by lhe exiensien of credit to its custemers in the ordinary course of business is miligated
by tha Company's adherence to sirlct credit policies as overseen by affillates of the Company’s ultimale
holding company and the dsk posed by having cash on deposit st banks Is mitigated by the high credit
ralings assigned by to these countarparties by international credit raling agenciss

Undertaking financing actvities wilh affiliales of the Company's ultimate holding company may oxpose
the Company to collection sisk andfor cash flow interest rale nsk. The Company belleves that the
collaction risk essocialed with amounts due from sffihales of the Company's ultimaie holding company 18
low gven thal the counterparlias are sufficlently capitalized and due to the financlal support which all
affillates may receive from the ulumale parent company  In additon, since the Interest-bearing llabilities of
¢ the Company carry a fixed annual coupon interest rate of 1 00% and a yreld of 6 5% have been issuad to
related paries, the Company considers Lhe financing nek posed by these financlal instruments to be low

Outlook

During the year, the Campany continued s focus an harnessing the benefils of the acquisition of tha
outstanding equity interests of Angiotech S L., Anglotech GmbH, Anglotech Switzerland SA, Angiotech
SARL and Anglotech Danmark A/S, In order to convert them Into sales growth, unlt pricing improvements,
andfor expense containment and reduction In order to facitate the achievement of profiability targats.

No signricant investments n opening additlonal offices ar hinng addiional sales, marketing, and supply
chain employees are anlicipated in the upcoming year ending December 31, 2016 as the Company
balieves thet ds established infrastructure will permit the Company to achieve its profitability targets

Cramuieslin, /[Rpes

Sharon McNally Alke Alida van Solkema-Boer
Director Director
June 30, 2016 June 30, 20186




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

December 31, 2015 and 2014

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Net sales (Note 6)
Cost of sales (Note 7)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses {Note 8,9,10,11)
Operating profit

Interest expense, net (Note 12)
Foreign currency losses

Total finance losses

Gain on write off of payahle to an affihated cempany (Note 13)
Income (loss} before taxation

Income taxes (Nota 14)
Income (loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income {loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total comprehensiva income (loss) for the year

2015 2014
€ 42,033,836 € 45992353
29,524,083 32,628,351
12,515,813 13,364,002
12,341,347 12,608,268
174,466 755,734
728,978 625,052
1,154,637 2,066,523
1,883,615 2,691,575
7,859,426 -
6,150,277 (1,935,841)
196,090 41,627
5,054,187 {1,977,468)
1,998,782 -
€ 7952969 € (1.977.468)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

{amounts presentad in Euro (€} unless otherwise stated) 2015 2014
Assets
Noncurrent assets
Property and equipment, net (Note 15) € 46614 € 39,215
Intangible assets, net (Note 16) 8,645,729 8,809,047
Goodwill (Note 16) 12,639,986 11,455,754
21,332,329 20,304,016
Current assets
Inventories (Note 17) 7,004,335 7,720,618
Trade receivables (Note 18) 7,024,675 7,064,219
Recewvables due from related parties (Note 26) 46,000 1,163,607
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {Note 19) 169,347 191,913
Indirect taxes receivable (Note 20) 90,818 131,838
Income taxes recewable (Note 14) 199,193 85,903
Cash at banks (Note 21) 4,743,693 5,331,327
19,268,061 21689425
Total assets € 40,600,390 € 41,993,441

Equity and Liabilities
Equity attributable to owner of the company

Share capital (Note 22) € 18,000 € 18,000
Share pramwum {Note 22) 10,567,008 10,147,358
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - foreign
currency translation adjustment 1,998,782 -
Accumulated samings 6,887,200 933,013
Total equity 19,470,990 11,098,371
Noncurrent habiibes
Related party promissory note (Note 24, 26) 10,592,186 6,927,663
Deferred income tax habdibes (Note 14) 2,083,681 2,250,001
Total noncurrent habilities 12,675,867 9,177,664
Current iabilities
Payables due to related parties (Note 26) 5,121,085 18,728,694
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 25) 2,222 566 2,281,809
Indirect taxes payable (Note 20) 604,107 598,910
Income fax payable {Note 14) 505,805 107,993
Total current habiities 8,453,533 21,717 406
Total habilities 21,129,400 30,885,070
Total equity and habilities € 40,600,380 € 41,093 441

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Attributabie to Owner of the Company
Accumulated

other
Comprahensive
tncome (Lozs}
Foralgn
Curmancy
Teanslat " (ntad
{(amsunty presenied in Euro (€} unless otherwise siaterd) Share Caphat Share Premium Adjustment Esmnings Total Equity
Balances zt January 1, 2014 € WO € 10 147358 € - £ 2910431 € 13075839
Comprehensne 1053 - - - [1 9TT A63) 11977 AT}
Batances 2t December 31 2014 € 1B000 € 10147358 € - € 933013 € 11088371
Balsnces st Jaruary 1, 2015 € 18,000 € 10,147358 € - & 933012 € 11083371
Reialed pasty i Y nole 418850 - - 419 850
Comprehensive incoms - 5 954,187 5954 187
Foreign currency transiation adjusiment gain - 1898782 1998 782
Balances st Decembar 34, 2015 £ 18000 € 10567008 € 1950782 €  6BAT200 € 19470980

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

famounts presented in Euro (€} uniless otherwise stated) 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

incorne before taxation € 6,150,277 €  {1,935841)
Adjustments for
Depreciation (Note 15) 27,876 4,493
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 11, 16) 977,668 896,939
Amortization of promissory note debt discount 398,287 336,593
Gain on wnte off of payable to an affihated company (Note 13) (7.859,426) -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (Note 18) 61,280 8,615
Prowision for excess and obsolete inventones {Note 17) 352,957 203,482
Changes in working capital components, net of acquisitions -
Trade recevables {Note 18) (21,736} 249,954
Due to/from related parties, net {Note 26) {B55,659) (3,597.092)
Inventories (Note 17) 363,326 3,619,345
Indirect taxes, net (Note 20) 46,217 (28,015)
Prepaid expenses {(Note 19) 32,566 620,688
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 25) (59,243) 597,895
Cash generated from (used n) operations {385,410) 977,056
Income taxes paid (Note 14) (77.888) {190,936)
Cash paid for interest (89.060) -
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities {552,358) 786,120
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (Note 15) {35,275) {10,193)
Net cash used in iInvesting actvihies (35,275} (10,193}
Nel (decrease) increase tn cash {587,634) 175,927
Cash
Beginning of year 5,331,327 4,555,400
Ena of year € 4743693 € 5,331,327

Supplemental disclesures of noncash Investing and

financing activities

Conversion of shori-term payable to fong term note payable

due to an affillaled company (Note 26) € 2,461,250 € -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(amounts presented in Euro (€] unless atherwise staled)

1.

General Information

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands BV and Subsidianies (collectively the “Company”) was
incorporated on December 20, 2010 and maintains a registered office in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands The registered office 1s located at Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, the
Netherlands

In addion to its registered office in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, the Company has established
branch offices in Belgium, Denmark, Fintand, Germany, and Sweden, and has representatives in
France, Greece, and the United Kingdom The Company 1s wholly owned by Argon Medical
Devices Singapore Pte Ltd , a Singapore Corporation, which the Company regards as its
intermediate holding company After the acquisition of Interventional Products Busmess as noted
in Note 2, the Company's group operating structure also includes Argon Medica! Devices S L (f/k/a
Angiotech S L ), a Spanish legal entity, Argon Medical Devices GmbH (f/k/a Angrotech GmbH), a
German legal entity, Argon Medical Devices SARL (flva Angiotech SARL), a French legal entity,
and Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA (f/i/a Angiotech Switzerland SA), a Swiss legal entity

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc , a United States
Corporation The Company's ulimate holding company 18 majonty-owned by RoundTable
Healthcare Partners, LP, RoundTable Healthcare Partners i, LP, RoundTable Healthcare
Partners Ill, LP, RoundTabte Healthcare Investors, LP, and RoundTable Healthcare

Investors |, LP, and RoundTable Healthcare Investors Iil, LP (collectively referred to as
“RoundTable")

The Company distributes single-use vascular-access medical devices, biopsy devices, blood
pressure monitoring devices, central venous, pulmonary artery and extended dwell catheters to
hospital cardiac cathetenzation laboratones, interventional radiclogy laboratories and critical care
units  The Company's products are sold throughout Europe, the Middle East and Africa through a
combenation of direct sales representatives and premier distributors

Acquisitions

On February 9, 2014, the Company's ultimate parent company - Argon Medical Devices

Holding, Inc , a United States Corporation - initiated a restructuring of certam entibies under
common control In connection with this restructunng, the Cempany purchased from PBN Medical
Devices Denmark A/S, an affiliate under common control of the Company's ultimate parent
company, one-hundred percent (100%) of the 1ssued share capital of Argon Medical Devices
Danmark ApS (ffk/a Angiotech Danmark A/S) for a purchase price of $3,142,000 USD
(€2,414,941). As a result of this common control transaction, any difference between the net
carrying value of the assets and habilties transferred and the purchase price paid was presented
as an equity transaction in the penod received

11




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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IFRS does not provide guidance on the accounting for common control transactions However, as
noted in 1AS 8 10 it does require that entities devefop an accounting policy for accounting for these
transactions The two metheds mast commonly chosen for accounting for business combinations
between entities under commen control are (1) the acquisition method and (2) the predecessor
values method The Company has chosen the predecessor values method As a result, the net
carrying value of the assets and habilities received by the Company In this transaction was
recognized as a capital contnbution to the Company The results of operations of Argon Medical
Devices Danmark ApS (f/k/a Angiotech Danmark A/S) are included in the Company's consclidated
results of operatians from Apnl 12, 2013 (onginal date of acquisition) to December 31, 2013 The
histoncal financial statements reflect this change resulting from the common control transaction
that occurred during 2014

Following acquisibon described above, the Company's focus 1s on harnessing the benefits of the
acquisition in arder to convert them into sales growth, unit proing mprovements, and/or expense
containment and reduction These areas of focus are designed to meet the Company’s future
profitability targets

Indemnification Provisions

The Stock Purchase Agreement with Angiotech contains certain indemnification provisions granted
to all subsidianes of the Company's ulimate holding company. These indemnifications tnclude, but
are not imited to, indemnification from certain tax and employee termination and severance
habiities A portion of the purchase price paid by all affiliates of the Company’s ultimate holding
company was set aside in escrow on the Closing Date, to secure these mndemnifications and was
scheduled to be released on the first anniversary of the Closing Date  Up fo the first annwersary of
the Closing Date, the Company's ultimate holding company submitted reimbursement requests or
notices of unresolved claims relating {0 indemnified matters of the subsid:anes acquired by

the Company totaling €1,387,915 to the escrow agent and the remaining balance in escrow was
released on Aprit 14, 2014

Following the release of the escrow deposits on Apn! 14, 2014, indemnification recoveries are
capped at €1,816,000 ($2,500,000) in certain instances, including indemnification claims related to
certain tax matter, for all subsidianes of the Company's ultimate holding company except for
additional escrows deposited by Angiotech to secure indemnifications granted to other subsidianes
of the Company's ultimate holding company and except for amounts related to the rembursement
requests and notices of unresolved clams submitted prior to the release of the escrow deposits on
April 14, 2014 The tax indemnifications included in Stock Purchase Agreement expire three years
from the anniversary of the Closing Date and the remaining indemnification provisions expire at
vanous future dates As of December 31, 2015 there are no additienal risks related to the
indemnification provisions

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financiat statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and under the
histoncal cost convention The prncipal accounting pohcies, which have been consisiently applied,
are set out below
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The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 1n conformity with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union requires the use of certain cntical
accounling estmates It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’'s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of jJudgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5

Operating Structure

The Company's operating structure includes Argon Medical Devices Nethertands B V , a Dutch
entity, branch offices of Argon Medical Devices Nethertands B V in Belgium, Denmark, Finiand,
Germany, and Sweden, and representatives of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V' operating
tn France, Greece, and the Uruted Kingdom which were formed and existed pnior to December 31,
2011 After the acquisition of Interventional Products Business acquisition as noted in Note 2, the
Company’s group operating structure also includes Argon Medical Devices S L {ffk/a

Angiotech S L ), a Spanish legal entity, Argon Medical Devices GmbH (f/k/a Angiotech GmbH), a
Gemman legal entity, Argon Medical Devices SARL {f/k/a Angiotech SARL), a French legal entity,
and Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA (f/k/a Angiotech Switzerland SA), a Swiss legal entity

Consolidation

Subsidianes are all entites over which the Company has control The Company controls an entity
when the Company 15 exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable returns from is involvement with the
entity and has the abilty to affect those returns through its power over the entity Subsichanes are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Cempany They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

The Company applies the acquisiion method to account for business combinations The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s the farr values of the assets
transferred, the habiiities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Company The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement  Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilties and contingent habihties assumed in a bustness combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date  Acquisiion-related costs are expensed as incurred

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
farr value of the identifiable net assets acquired i1s recorded as goodwill inter-company
transactions, balances and unreakzed gains and losses on transactions between the Company and
its subsidianes are elminated When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Company's accounting policies

The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of the Argon Medical Devices
Netherlands B V and its wholly owned subsidianes Argon Medical Devices S L (i&/a Angiotech
S L), a Spanish legal entity, Argon Medical Devices GmbH (fik/a Angiotech GmbH), a German
legal entity, Argon Medical Devices SARL (f/k/a Angiotech SARL), a French legal entity, and Argon
Medical Devices Switzerland SA (f/k/a Angiotech Switzerland SA), a Swiss legal entty
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The Company's consolidated financial statements include the results of operations and balance
sheets of its wholly owned subsidiartes and branch offices Intra-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions between the Company, its wholly owned subsidiares and
branch offices, and iIncome and expenses from intra-company transactions that are recognized in
assets, if any, are eiminated

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Company

The following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
adopted in these consoldated financial statements The application of these naw and revised
IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but
may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements

*» Amendments to IFRS = Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011 = 2013
Cycle

The adoption of the improvements made in the 2012-2012 Cycle has required additional
disclosures in our segment note Other than that, the adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the current period or any prior periad and is not likely to affect future penods

The group also elected to adopt the following two amendments early “Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle” and "Disclosure Intistve Amendments to IAS 1°  As these amendments
merely clanfy the existing requirements, they do not affect the group's accounting pohcies or any of
the disclosures

New Standards and interpretations not yet Adopted

The Company has applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements all the
standards and interpretations of the IFRS, as adopted by the EU, that are effective at the date of
these consolidated financial statements A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interprefations are effective for annual penods beginning aflter December 31, 2015,
and have not been apphed in prepanng these consolidated financial statemenis None of these 1s
expected to have a significant effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements

+ IFRS 9, ‘'Financial instruments’, addresses the classdication, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial labilities  [FRS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and
October 2010 It replaces the parts of IAS 35 that relate to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments 1FRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified inte two
measurement categores those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortized
cost The determination 1s made at inthial recognitton  The classification depends on the
entity’s business medel for managing ts financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
charactenistics of the instrument For financial habilities, the standard retains most of the IAS
39 requirements The main change 1s that, in cases where the fair value option 1s taken for
financial habilities, the part of a farr value change due to an entity’s own credit rigk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an
accounting mismatch The Company does nof anticipate any impact to the financial
statements as a result of this accounting standard The standard 1s effective for annual pernods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earler application 1s permitted Based on the
transitional provisions in the completed IFRS 9, early adoption in phases was only permitted for
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annual reporting periods beginning befora 1 February 2015 After that date, the new nules
must be adopted in their entirety  The Company 1s assessing the impact of IFRS 15, if any

* |FRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, tming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from an entity's
contracts with customers Revenue 1s recogrised when a customer obtains control of a good
or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtatn the benefits from the good or
service The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and
related interpretations The standard 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018 and earlier application 1s permitted  The Company s assessing the impact of
IFRS 15, if any

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected
te have a matenal mpact on the Company upon adoption

Foreign Currency Translation

ltems included in the Company's consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functonal
currency”) The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro (€), the Company's
functional and presentation curency Each of the Company's subsidisnes was also determined to
have a functional currency of the Euro (€) since the primary economic environment in which these
entities operate uses the Euro (€) as the predominant local currency.

The Company has operations in several countnes where their local currencies are different than
therr functional currency  Adjustments resulting from the process of translating local currency
financial statement into the functional currency of the Euro (€) are included i accumulated other
comprehensive Income (loss) in stockholders’ equity  Foreign currency transactions of the
Company and its subsidianes which are denominated in currencies other than the Company's
functional currency are translated inte the Company’s functional and presentation currency for
financial reporting purposes Fareign exchange gains and losses resulting fram the re-
measurement of foreign currency transactions denomitnated in currencies other than the
Company’s functional currency at the reporting date and the settiement of such transactions are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other than the adjustments ¢ translate local currency financial statement into the function currency
of the Euro (€) as part of the Company’s cumulative transfation adjustment, the Company has no
transacttons that need to be presented in other comprehensive income (loss) or accurnmulated other
comprehensive income (loss) Accordingly, no transactions are expected to be recycled from
accumulated other Income (loss) through the Company's consolidated statemeant of income in the
upcoming fiscal year

15




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise stated)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at histonical cost less accumulated depreciation Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property and equipment
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cammying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when #t 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured relably Al other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statements of comprehensive income dunng the penod in which
they are incurred Depreciation 1S calculated using the straxght-ine method, assuming no residuaf
value, over the assets’ estimated useful lives, or the Yife of the underlying lease, whichever s
shorter, as follows

Estimated
Useful Lives
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 3-5 years

When assets are retired or sold, the net carrying amount 1s elminated with any gain or loss on
disposal recognized 1n the penod of disposal and classified within selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company's consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Goodwill

Goodwlll anses on the acquisihon of subsidianes and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company's interest in net farr value of the net identifiable assets, labililes and
contingent liabilies of the acquiree

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (*CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the
synergtes of the combiation Each CGU to which the goodwill i1s allocated represents the lowest
level within the enlity at which the goodwill 15 monitored for internal management purposes

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
crcumstances indicate a potential mparrment The carrying value of goodwill 1s compared 1o the
recoverable amount which 1s the higher of value in use and the farr value less costs of disposal
The value in use 15 calculated using the discounted cash flow model  Any impairment 1s
recognized immediately as an expense and 1s not subsequently reversed

Operating segments are reported in accordance with internally reported information to the chief
cperabing decision-maker The Executive Board 1s regarded as the chief operating decision-maker
responsible for the allocation of funds to and the assessment of the operating segments

The company monitors results by product ine  The product ines compnse two cash generating
units The Executive Board bases its decisions on this The cash generating units are grouped
together on a segment basis Disclosure on the operating segment Is in keeping with this grouping,
with the cash generating units being consohdated as they both benefit from the business
combination that gave nse to the goodwill
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Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets consist of fair values asstgned to customer relationships, propnetary technology
and know-how, patents, and trade-names, ansing from the acquisition discussed in Note 2 which
have been grouped Into the principal product lines {Vascular & Biopsy) which were acquired in that
acquisition These Intangible assets have definite ives and are carned at cost less accumulated
amortization in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets Amorhzation 1s calculated using the
straight-hne method to allocate the cost of these intangible assets over ther estimated useful hves
of eight {8) to twelve (12) years assuming no residual value

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization, such as property and equipment and
definite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair vatue less costs to sell and value In use
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest lavels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unts) There have been no nonfinancial
assets that have suffered from impairment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost s determined using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price n the ordinary
course of business, less disposal costs The Company evaluates inventory levels and expected
usage on a penodic basis and records valuation allowances as required Substantiaily all
inventonies are purchased from related parties as further discussed in Note 17

Trade Receivables

Trade recevables represent amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business |f collectton 1s expected in one year or less trade
recewvables are classified as current assels If not, trade receivables are presented as noncurrent
assets Trade recewables are recognized initially at fair vatue and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment

The provision for impairment s recorded based upon the Company's estimate of credit losses
included in accounts receivable considering historical [osses on trade recetvables and a specific
review all accounts whose aging is nearing or has exceeded creditterms Account balances are
charged against the provision for mpairment when it 1s determined they will not be collected
The Company records a provision for custorner returns and customer discounts at the time of
product shipment based upon the Company's histoncal expenence with customer rebates and
discounts

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Costs incurred which the Company expects will benefit multiple penods are capitalized as prepaid
expenses These costs are recognized In the statements of comprehensive income over the penod
in which the Company benefits from the expenditure using a method that reflects the pattern in
which the Company benefits from the expenditure

Other current assets consist mostly of other nontrade recewvables which the Company expects to
collect within twelve {12) months from the balance sheet date
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Indirect Taxes

Indirect taxes are added to goods or services when they are purchased (indirect tax receivable)
and when they are sold (indirect tax payable) The Company recognizes indirect taxes owed to
and owed from taxing authonties in each country in which it conducts transactions subject o these
taxes and remits payments on a timely basis to the taxing authonties in each country

Cash at Banks
Amounts presented as cash at bank inctude only cash at call with banks

Share Capital and Share Premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Equity contributions made by the Company’s shareholder
n excess of the par value of the Company's shares are classified as share premium 1n

the Company’s consohdated balance sheets

Related Party Promissory Note

Related party borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently carned at amortized cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs incurred) and the redemption value 1s recognized in the Company's statements of
comprehensive iIncome over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Due to the related party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction casts or
other direct fees were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissery note

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualfying assets, which are assets that necessanly take a substantial penod of time
{o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for therr intended use or sale

Investment iIncome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets, if any, 1s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitahzation

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurred

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from supplers Accounts payable and accrued
expenses are classified as current labilties if payment 1s due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business If tonger) If not, they are presented as noncurrent hiabilities
None of the Company’s accounts payable or accrued expenses include a provision for interest to
be charged on cutstanding amounts

Due toffrom Related Parties

Amounts due to and due from related parbes have ansen as a result of the related party
transactions descnbed in Note 26 Amounts due to and due from related parties are classified as
current If payment 1s due within one year or less  If not, amounts due to and due from related
parties are presented as noncurrent Amounts due to and due from related are recognized initially
at farr value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
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Employee Benefits
The Company does not directly sponsor any defined benefit pension plans or other post-retirement
benefit plans

The Company participates in defined contnbution benefit ptans in multiple countnes which are
administered by ether the government or a third-party adminustrator depending on the terntory  For
these defined contnbution benefit plans, once the Company has made its contrnibution, which can
be either voluntary, mandatory, or a combmnation depending on the country, the Company has no
further obligation to fund the defined contribution benefit plan Obligations to contnbute to defined
contnbution benefit plans are recognized as incurred which 1s generally when an employee renders
services that entitle them to the related contnbution

At the discretion of the Company’'s management, bonuses may be paid to the Company’s
employees The Company recognizes a hability and the expense for any bonuses expected to be
paid for the current year's performance as incurred which 1s generally when an employee renders
services that entitle them to the related contrbution

Income Taxes

The income tax expense recognized includes current and deferred income taxes for the penod
Income taxes are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity  In the case of
items recognized tn other comprehensive iIncome or directly in equity, the assoctated income taxes
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

The current income tax expense recognized 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and
registered branches operate and generate taxable income Management penodically evaluates
positions taken in income tax returns with respect to situations in which the applicabla income tax
regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropnate on the basts of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties

Deferred income tax (s recognized on temporary differences ansing between the (ncome fax bases
of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements
However, deferred tax habiiies are not recogrized if they anse from the inittal recognition of
goodwili, deferred income tax 1s not accounted for if it anses from inittal recognition of an asset or
liability 1n a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss  Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realized or the deferred income
tax habiiity 15 settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utlized

Deferred income tax labilities are provided on taxable temporary differences ansing from
investments in subsidianes, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax
lability where the iming of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the group and it
ts probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates Only where there
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1s an agreement in place that gives the group the ability to control the reversal of the temparary
difference not recognized

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible temporary differences arnsing from
tnvestments in subsichanes, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it 1s probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there 1s sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utiized

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to
offset current tax assets aganst current tax habil:hes and when the deferred iIncome taxes assets
and liabilities relate to iIncome taxes levied by the same taxing authonty on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

Revenue Recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes
The Company recegnizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it
15 probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity, when the goods have been
delivered, and when specific cniena have been met for each of the Company’s activities

The Company bases its estimate of returns on histoncal results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement

The Company’s invoices include amounts for shipping and handling costs including postage
The Company recognizes these billings as sales and includes the asscciated costs in selling,
general, and administrative expenses

Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold represents the associated cost of inventones sold in sales transactions and i1s
recorded at the time sales are recognized Acquired inventanies are initially measured at fair value
which can result in an increase or decrease from their histoncal cost basis which s recognized in
cost of goods sold when the inventones were sold (Note 7)

Royalty Expense
Product rayalties owed to third parltes are recognized as expense goods subject to the royalty
arrangements are sold based on the substance of the relevant agreements (Note 10)

Amortization Expense
Amortization expense related to the amortization of definite-ived intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives (Note 11)

Interest Expense, Net
Interest charged on borrowings 1s recognized in accordance with the terms of the underlying
financial instruments (Note 12)

Leases

The Company leases certain property and equipment under operating leases Leases in which a
significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives receved from the
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lessor) are charged to the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
pened of the lease

4 Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks foreign exchange nsk, credit nsk,
llquidity nisk, and cash fiow interest rate nsk  The Company's overall nsk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Cempany's financial performance

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company, iis registered branches, and wholly owned subsidianes operate internationally and
cenduct transachons in multiple foreign currencies which create various foreign currency exposures
pnmanly with respect to the United States dollar, Singapore dollar, British pound sterling, Swedish
krena, and Danish krone, Polish zloty, Swiss franc, and Norwegian krone The Company does not
hedge these fareign currency exposures and recogruzes foreign currency transaction gains and
losses in its statements of comprehensive ncome

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, various individual balances included i the Company's
balance sheets were denominated in foreign currencies as follows
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The Company's total comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 I
would have been impacted as follows if the vanous foreign currency movements had accurred
{assuming all other vanables held constant)
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Credit Risk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalent on depoesit with banks as well as credit exposures
to customers such as in the case of outstanding recewables and committed transactions Credit
risk an outstanding recewables 1s managed on a consolidated basis by the Company’s uitmate
holding company and its affiliates in order to mitigate the nsk of counterparty default and
concentration The ullimate holding company and its affihates manages and analyses the credit
risk for each of the Company's customers before standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered

The credit nsk on iquid funds 1s imited because the counterparty 1s a bank with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the Company’s balance sheet

Liguidity Risk

Cash flow forecasting 1s perforrned on a consoldated basis by the Company’s ullimate holding
company and its affillates which includes monitonng rolling forecasts of iquidity needs to ensure
the Company has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs As of December 31, 2015, the
Company had €4,743,693 in cash at banks in vanous terrtones The Company believes the
hiquidity nsk posed by ds cash being held in varicus terntories 1s minimal as none of these temitories
possesses onerous restrichons on the Company's abilty to freely transfer cash to other temitones
to meet its iquidity needs The current habifities that wili be settled within one year were
€B,453,533 and €21,717,406 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
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Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company entered in a prorissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) with Argon Medical Devices, Inc  The
promessory note matures Apnl 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yeld
(payable monthly) The promissory note can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium as
inthated by Argen Medial Devices Netherlands BV This related party borrowing s recogmized
inikially at fair value, net of transaction casts incurred, and subsequently carmed at amortized cost
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is €8,130,936 and
€6,927,663

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affiliate of the Company's ulimate holding
company, which convered s short-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acguisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS to long-tenm as at 2015 The promissory note
matures Decerber 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% (payable annually) and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium This related party borrowing i1s recognized
inthially at farr value, net of ransaction costs incured, and subsequently camed at amortized cost
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 15 €2,461,250 Due to the related
party nature of the Company’s cutstanding borrowings, no transacton costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note

The table below analyses the Company's non-dervative finanmal hamlities into matunty groupings
based on contractual matunty dates

Interest Nominal Total

Expense on Value Payment Payments on
Promissory on Promissory Promissory

Note Note Note
2015 € 501,738 € - € 501,738
20186 688,373 - 688,373
2017 725,285 - 725,285
2018 341,307 12,051,733 12,393,040

Due to the Company's non-derivative financial liabilites having a contractual matunty of Apni 12,
2018 and the related party nature of these obligations, the Company believes these borrowings do
not pose any significant iquidity nsk  The effect of a one-percent (1%} increase of decrease in the
interest rate on the Company’s financial habilities would be an decrease or increase to

the Company's profitability of approximately (€120,000) and €120,000, respectively, in the
upcoming fiscal year

Company's profitability due to increases or decreases in interest expense recognized as a result of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates 1s substantially similar to the effects descnbed in the
preceding section regarding foreign exchange nsk and movements in the United States dallar
foreign exchange rate since the Company’s interest-beanng debt is denorminated in

United States dollar
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Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Company's cash-flow interest rate nsk generally anses from s related party promissory note
This financial instrument has a fixed annual coupon interest rate of 1% and a yield 0f 6 5% The
nature of the related party promissory note minimizes the cash-flow interest rate risk posed by this
borrowing

The Company has no other significant interest-beanng assets or habilittes Therefore its income
and operating cash flows are substantally independent of changes in market interest rates and no
sensitivity analysis 1s performed

Capital Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for its shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maimntain an cptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Company's capital structure represents equity aitributable to the owner of the Company and
includes 1ssued share capital, share premium, and accumulated eamings

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to its shareholder, return capal to tts shareholder, 1Issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt Compared to last year there have been no significant changes in capital nsk
management policies

Fair Value Estimation
The Company's financtal iInstruments can be classified by which level in the valuation hierarchy, the
inputs which in therr measurement correspend The different levels have been defined as follows

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilittes

Level 2 Iinputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or lability, either directly (that 1s, as pnices) or indirectly (that 1s, denved from
prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or iability that are not based on observable market data {that 1s,

uncbservable inputs)

The Company's related party promissory note (Note 26) was valued using Level 3 inputs and the
fair value of this financial hability approximates its carrying value as of December 31, 2015 The
fair value of the Company's other financial instruments such as accounts receivable, other current
assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate their carmying value due to therr
short duration

The Company’s retated party promissory note (Note 26) nor it's other related panty balances are
subject to master netting arrangements between different related parly entites and have therefore
balances due to and/or due from these different related party entiies only been subject to netting
on an individual legal entity basis
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5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definstion, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant sk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and habiities within the next financta! year include the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and inventory reserves and the evaluation of the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets as descrbed further below

The calculation of the prowisicn for impairment of trade receivables relies on histonical losses on
trade recewvables and a specific review all accounts whose aging 1s nearing or which have
exceeded credit terms as of the reporting date in order to estimate the necessary provision Future
losses on trade receivables may be more or less than histoncal losses and the specific review of
accounts whose aging 1s nearing or which have exceeded credit terms may not accurately capture
all uncollectible accoeunt balances which may have an impact on the accuracy of the provision for
impatrment recorded at the balance sheet date

The impairment of trade recevables would be an estimated €10,000 lower or €10,000 tugher were
the histoncal rate used in the analysis to differ by 10% from management's estmates.

Inventory valuation allowances are recognized based on the estimated net realizable value of
inventories as of the reporting date and net reatizable value 1s compnsed of the estmated selling
price of the inventones in the ordinary course of business less disposal costs The future selling
prices of mvantones and disposal costs may be more or less than the estmated amounts used in
determining the inventory valuation allowances which may have an impact on the accuracy of the
provision for impaiment recorded at the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be avalable against which the temporary differences can be utihized When future taxable
profits are judged to not exist, valuation allowances against deferred income taxes are recogrized
in order to reduce those deferred Income assets to thewr estimated recoverable amount  Within the
next financial year, the Company’s estmates of future taxable profils may change which could
impact the Company’s assessment of the recoverability of its deferred income tax assets and result
in the release of its valuation allowances recorded against its deferred iIncome tax assets at
December 31, 2015

Were the actual final cutcome (on the judgment areas) of expected cash flows {o differ by 10%
from management's estimates, the group would need to

s Increase the income tax hability by an estimated €45,000 and the deferred tax kability by an
estmated €12,000, if unfavorable, or

¢ Decrease the ncome tax liability by estmated €45,000 and the deferred tax liability by an
estimated €12,000, If favorable
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In addition to those estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilittes within the next financal year, the
estimates and assumptions related to Intangible Assets and Goodwill are important to

the Company's consolidated financial statements

Estimates related to Intangible assets recagnized in connection with the Company's acquisttion of
the Interventional Products Business disclosed in Note 2 were initially recorded at farr value The
important estimates related to the Intangible assets are discussad within Note 2 of the financials

The Company tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with its
accounting policy The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-:n-use calculaticns The prnincipal iInpuis to these value in-use calculations are
profitability at the legal entity level {(which was determined by the Company to be the cash-
generating units (*“CGUs") for purposes of conducling these tests), discount rates, and/or market
multiples The accuracy of the pnncipal snputs used by the Company 1n its value-in-use
calculations has a direct impact on its calculation of the recoverable amount of goodwill The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations These calculations require the use of estimates in Note 16 Per the goodwill
impairment analysis performed in the above noted Note, there was no impairment in 2015

If the estimated cost of capttal used in determining the pre-tax discount rate for the CGU had been
1% higher than management's estimates (for example, 10% instead of 9%), the group stll would
have not had an impairment charge in 2015 against goadwill

The Company conducts its business activities in mulhple countries across Europe, the Middle East,
and Africa and those business activites and the Company's multiqunsdictional structure requires
that the Company, its branch offices, and its wholly owned subsidianes comply with iIncome tax
laws and regulations in several countries and there may be transactions and balances for which the
uttimate income tax determination 1s uncertain Local tax authonties may challenge the Company's
income tax positions and final determinations by those authorities which differ from income tax
positions taken by the Company may result mpact the accuracy of the iIncome tax figures reported
by the Company
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6. Net Sales

Net sales reported for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were generated by the

following registered branch offices and legal entity

Branch
Beigium
Denmark
Finland
Gemany
Norway
Sweden

Legal entity

Netheriands {Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V)

France (Argon Medical Devices SARL)
Germany {Argon Medical Devices GmbH)
Spasn {Argon Medical Devices S L)

Switzerland (Argon Medical Devices Switzertand SA)

Denmark (Argen Medical Devices Danmark A/S)

2015 2014
€ 1184265 € 1,132,834
1,319,274 1,327,344
2,376,062 2,550,719
4,512,817 4,325,324
2,321,375 2,362,484
4,241,269 4,513 245
15,955,062 16,211,950
8,960,885 8,833,455
1,766,287 1,877,426
1,960,440 1,894,398
1,368,077 1,277,703
10,441,908 14,230,834
1,687,237 1,666,587
26,084,834 26,780,403
€ 42,039,898 € 45992353

Net sales to distributors generated by the Company's representatives in France, Greece, and the
United Kingdom are recognized by the Company's Netherlands legal entity

7. Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were compnsed of
€29,524,083 and €32,628,351, respectively, of inventories that were sold in sales transactions,
including impact related to the fair value of acquired inventonies in excess of or less than therr

histoncal cost basis (Note 2)
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8. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in 2015 and 2014 were comprised of the
following components

2015 2014
Employee costs € 4757967 € 4,755,815
Transportation expenses 1,400,181 1,406,448
QOutsourced logistics and administrative services expenses 1,783,047 1,884,384
Amaortization expense 977,868 896,939
Auditing and taxation services (iIndependent auchtor's remuneration) 850,884 700470
Consulting services 75,263 331,963
QOperating lease expenses 473,935 436,225
Royalty expense 395,740 459,676
Travel and entertainment ar2123 355,186
Comrrussion 366,080 535,201
Meetings and seminars 148,700 110,378
Marketing and advertising expenses 135,444 95,496
Communication and information technolegy 96,150 98,739
Office administration 90,794 67,152
Registration 337 22,461
Legal services 31,055 64,790
Depreciation 27.876 4,493
Provision for (reversal of provision for) impairment of trade receivables 101,069 (2,062)
Other expenses 222,954 384,424

€ 12,341.347 € 12,608,268

Independent auditor's remuneration

Audit services
PwC Netherlands € 36,772 € 35,875
Other PwC Offices 367,579 251,790
Sub-total 404,351 287,665
Taxation services
PwC Netherlands 75.430 14,000
Other PwC Offices 208,867 215,075
Sub-totat 284,297 229,075
Consulting services Non-Netherlands PwC Offices 42,107 62,97¢

€ 730,755 € 579,719

The Audit and Tax fees listed above relate to the procedures applied to the Company and its
consolidated group entities by the external independent auditor and accounting fim
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants NV as referred to i Section 1, subsection 1 of the Dutch
Accounting Firms Oversight Act (Dutch acronym Wta) Audit and Tax services were all performed
by PricewaterhouseCoopers giobal network

Consulting services relate to advisory services rendered by the Company's independent auditors to

advise the Company en human resources, payroll, employee benefits arrangements and other
matters and are also performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers global network
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10

Information Regarding Employees

Employee costs for the years ended Dacember 31, 2015 and 2014 were comprised of the following
significant components

2015 2014
Salaries € 2,740,739 € 3,003,545
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 519,541 250,825
Social secunty costs 742,723 773,341
Bonus 330,706 293,756
Compensated absences 144,728 100,896
Other employee costs 279,530 333,452

€ 4757967 € 4,755815

The average menthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was

2015 2014
Selling and distnbution 48 45
Supply chain 2 1
Finance 2 2
50 48

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the number of persons (including directors) employed by
the Company working In the Netherlands were three (3)

Included in pensien costs and social secunty costs above are the Company's expenses for its
participation in defined contnbution benefit plans as well as the cost associated with the Company's
oblhgation to make contnbutions to government-sponsored employee retirement programs in

certain countnes

Royalty Expense

Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
icensed products based on the profitability of the associated products The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these products are sold which are paid to affliates monthly During the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized €395,740 and €459,676, respectively, in
royalty expense associated with the sale of these licensed products
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11.

12.

13.

The Company has a supply arrangement with Argon Medical Devicgs Biocoatings Cormp

(fifa Angrotech Biocoatings Corp ), an affilate of the Company's ulimate hotding company, that
requires the Company pay a royalty based on the Company's sale of cartain products across
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, which utilize intellectual property which 1s controlled by the
affilate  The Company recognizes royalty expense when the licensed products are sold which 1s
paid to the affilate monthly Dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company
recognized €167,493, €219,271, respectively, in royalty expense associated with the sale of these
Iicensed products

Amortization Expense

Amortization expense of definite-ived intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014 was approximately €977,868 and €896,939, respectively The Company estimates
annual amortization expense of definite-lived intangible assets will be approximately €980,000 in
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 related to is definite-lived intangible assets

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was €728,978 and
€625,052, respectively, and arose primary as a result of interest incurred on related party
borrowings (Note 26)

Gamn on Write off of Payable to an Affiliated Company

In 2015, one of the Company's wholly owned subsidiaries, Argon Medical Devices Switzerland SA,
recognized a gain on write off on its short-term payable to PBN Medicals Danmark A/S, an affilated
caempany under common control of the Company’s ulbmate parent company This short term
payable was properly cleared at the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate holding
company upon the acquisition of the Interventional Products Business in 2013 Management made
a decision to write off the short-term payable to follow the approach of its ultimate helding

company There is not a tax impact of this wnte off as the transaction was not taxable
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14.

Income Taxes

The Company has a glabal transfer pncing arrangement The Company therefore incurs tax
expense (income) with respect to vanous junsdictions in which business is conducted Income tax
expense recognized dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were compnsed of the
following significant components

2015 2014
Current income tax
Current income tax on profits for the year € 441090 € 207,746
Total current income tax expense (benefit) 441,090 207,746
Deferred income tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (245,000) {166,119)
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) (245,000) (166,119)
Total Income tax expense {banefit) € 196,080 € 41,627

The income tax expense recognized on the Company’s profit before income taxes differs from the
theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average income tax rate applicable to
profits before tncome taxes as follows

2015 2014
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit before tax multiphed by weighted average rate of 3 19%
and -2 15% at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively € 66,940 € (131,071)
Permanent nondeductible expenses 129,150 172,698
Total current income {ax expense € 186,080 € 41,627

The Company's weighted average tax rate of 3 19% and -2 15% at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, differs from the tax rate of 25 00% applicable on taxable profits in excess of €200,000
since the Company's taxable profits up to €200,000 were subject to tax at a lower rate of 20 00%
apphcable for entities incorporated in the Netherlands

There were no iIncome taxes recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity during
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

The Company pencdically remits payments to the tax authonties for its estimated income taxes in
those junsdictions where the Company has income tax cbhigations Payments made in excess of
the Company's mcome tax obhigation for the period are recognized as income taxes recewvable and
income tax obligations for the penod in excess of payments made are recognized as income taxes
payable As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had income taxes receivables and
payables of €199,193 and €505,805 respectively, and €85,903 and €107,993, respectively
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Components of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilites at December 31,
2015 and 2014 are as follows

2018 2014
Deferred income tax assets
Net aperating losses € 1,138033 € 3929874
Total deferred income tax assets 1,138,033 3,929 874
Deferred income tax habilities
Intangible assets {2,083,681) (2,250,001)
Total deferred income tax liabiities (2,083,681) (2,250,001)
Valuation allowance {1,138,033) {3.929,874)
Net deferred income tax asset (hability) € (2,083,681} € (2,250,001)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows
2015 2014
Net deferred income tax asset (Ilability} at January 1 € (2250001) € -
Acquisition of Angictech Interventional Products Business - {2,024,631)
Reversal {origination) of temporary differences 166,320 {225,370)
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) at December 31 € (2,083681) € (2,250,001)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabiittes dunng the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, 15 as follows

Deferred Income Tax Assets

2015 2014
Deferred income tax assets at January 1 € - € -
Acquisition of Angiotech Interventional Products Business 3,929,874 4,235,529
Reversal (ongination) of temporary differences (2,791,841) (305,655)
Recognition of valuation allowance against net operating losses (1,138,033} (3,929,874)
Deferred income tax assets at December 31 € - € -
Deferred income Tax Liabilities

2015 2014
Deferred income tax liabilities at January 1 € (2,250,001) € -
Acquisiion of Angiotech Interventional Preducts Business - (2,330,286)
Reversal (orlgination) of temporary differences 166,320 80,285
Deferred income tax liabilities at December 31 € (2,083681) € (2,250,001)
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15.

in connection with the Interventional Products Business acquisition discussed in Note 2,

the Company assumed the incame tax positions of the acquired entties, including but not imited to
Argon Medtcal Devices Switzerland SA (flk/a Angiotech Switzerland SA) which had significant
histoncal net operating losses These net operating losses were tnitially measured at fair value
which was determined to be zero since the likelihood of thew rehabdity in future penods was remote
due to the entity's history of lasses and the existence of a local tax holiday that precluded the entity
from benefiting from these net operating iosses while the local tax holiday was in place
Subsequent to the Interventional Products Business acquisition, the entity apphed for a repeal of
the local tax holiday and the its profitability forecasts were enhanced due to its participation in the
ultimate parent company's global transfer pricing program which targets that the entity earn profits
ranging from three percent (3%) to five percent (5%) of sales As of December 31, 2015, the
available evidence did not indicate that it was mare hikely than not that these net operating losses
would be realized in future periods and therefore the valuation allowance against these deferred
income tax assets was kept in place, however, it I1s possible that the weight of available positive
evidence shifts in the next financial year which would resutt in a release of the valuation allowance

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, which consists primarily of computer
and software, consists of

2015 2014
Beginning net book value € 38215 € 33,515
Cost
Additions 35,275 10,193
Disposal - -
At December 31 74,490 43,708
Depreciation
Charge for the year 27,876 4,493
Disposal - .
At December 31 27,876 4 493
Net book value € 46614 € 39,215
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18,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Cost basis, accumulated amoriization, and net book values of goodwill and intangible assets at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

Cost Basis

Balances at December 31, 2013
Foreign exchange differences
Balances at December 34, 2014
Forelgn exchange differences
Balances at December 34, 2015

Accumulated Amortization

Balances at December 31, 2013

Amortization expense (Note 11}
Foreign exchange differences

Balances at December 31, 2014

Amartization expense (Note 11)
Foreign exchange differences

Balances at December 31, 2015

Net Book Value

Balances at December 31, 2013

Cost
Accumulated Amortization

Balances at December 31, 2014

Cost
Accumulated Amortizatron

Balances at December 31, 2015

Vascular Biopsy Total
Product Product Intangible
Goodwll Lines Lines Assets
€ 11455754 € 722,484 € 9,640,545 € 10,363,033
11,455,754 722,484 9,640,549 10,363,033
1,184,232 59,627 880,012 938,639
€ 12639986 € 782,111 € 10,520,561 € 11,302,672
Vascular Biopsy Total
Product Product Intangible
Goodwill Lines Lines Agsets
€ - € (65,706) € (591,341) € {657,047)
(90,440) (804,237) (894,677)
(220) (2,042) (2,262)
- {156,366) (1,397,620} (1 553,986)
(100,761) (877,107) (977,868)
2894 {128.083) (125,089)
€ - & (254,133) € (2,402.810) € (21656,943)
Vascular Biopsy Total
Product Product Intangible
Goodwill Lines Lines Agsels
€ 11455754 € 656,778 € 9049208 € 9,705,986
11,455,754 722,484 9,640,549 10,363,033
- (156,366) (1,397,620} (1553 986)
11,455,754 566,118 8,242,929 8,809,047
12,639,386 782111 10,520,561 11,302,672
(254 133) (2,402,810) {2.656 943)
€ 12639986 € 527978 € B117,751 € 8645729
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The Company’s goodwill anses from the acquisition of Intervention Business Products from
Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc in 2013 The business which was acquired conducted its
operations principally through legal entities in France, Germany, Spain, Switzerand and Denmark,
and the goodwill recognized upon acquisittan was allocated {o these temitones as noted below
These balances are presented in 2013 as a result of the acquisition and the common control
transaction being recorded using the predecessor method (Note 2) There were no additions of
goodwilt In 2015

Foreign
Opening Acquisitions Exchangs Ending

Goodwtll Allocation - 2013

France € - € 444,504 € - € 444,504
Gemnany 223,227 223,227
Spain 91,771 91,771
Switzerland 9,398,275 1,185,523 10,583,788
Denmark 1,297 977 {1,281) 1,296,686
Balances at December 31, 2013 € - € 11455754 € 1,184,232 € 12,639,986

The recoverable amount of goodwili has been estimated based on value in-use calculations whose
principal nputs are a combination of projections of profitability at the legal entity level (which was
determined by the Coempany to be the cash-generating units (*CGUs") for purposes of conducting
these tests), discount rates, and/or market multiples As the Company Is a distnbutor, the sum of
the entities creates a single CGU i which goodwill impairment i1s assessed at

However, each of the legal entities where goodwill has been allocated - France, Gemmany, Spain,
Switzerland and Denmark — participate in the Company's ultmate holding company’s global
transfer pricing program which generally targets that entities of the size and complexity of similar to
that of these legal entities eam profits ranging from three percent (3%) to five percent (5%) which
supersedes all other inputs In terms of significance  The Campany's ultmate holding company has
the discretion to increase these profitability targets in future penods in order to permit the
recoverabilty of the Company's goodwill or decrease them under certain conditions although no
significant changes are likely to occur with the next twelve months

Consistent with prior penods, the Executive Board analyzes the results of the Company by product
line  The monthty information reported to the Executive Board, as chief operating decision maker,
15 1n hine with this Group results for the product ltnes are consolidated and analyzed as a single
segment. The Executive Board bases its decisions on this information

The value in use of the cash-generating unit resulted in no iImpairment compared to the carrying
amount as at December 31, 2015 or 2014

Management has projected cash flow forecasts over a penod of five years The annual budget 1s

used as a basis for the projection in the first year whereas key assumptions were applied for the
extrapolation of the results to the penod after the second year
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17,

Management determined compound annual growth rate of from 2 3 to 3 7%% for the cash-
generating unit covening over the five-year forecast penod to be a key assumption The volume of
sales in each penod i1s the main driver for revenue and costs The compound annual growth rate 1
based on past performance and management’'s expectations of market development EBITDA 1s
assumed to consistently approximate 3 5% of revenue for each projected penod in 2015 or 2014
Tiis 1s consistent with prior penods and the profitability targets by management as discussed
above The Company has insignificant plant property and equipment, therefore, depreciation
related costs are insignificant to the projections The weighted average cost of capia! 1s a key
assumption within the analysis and i1s determined to be 9% by management across the different
countnes in 2015 or 2014 This 1s consistent with valuations completed by the Company in
previous pencds The Company considered the weighted average cost of capital in different
countnes to address potential different nsk profiles The Company considered the country specific
nisk, however determined that this does not lead to any matenal other outcome of the Impaiment
model in 2015 or 2014

Inventories

Inventornies as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Firnished goods € 7501039 € 7,864,365
Less Excess and obsolescence prowision (4986,704) (143,747)

€ 7004335 € 7,720,618

Movements in the Company's excess and obsolescence provision of inventories during the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 wers as follows

At December 31, 2013 € 135,496
Provision for (recovery of provision for) excess and obsolete inventories 203,482
Disposal of previously reserved inventory {195,231)
At December 31, 2014 143,747
Prowvision for {recovery of proviston for) excess and obsclete inventones 614,118
Disposal of previously reserved inventory (261,161)
At December 31, 2015 € 496,704
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18 Trade Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, which are due within one year, consist of

2015 2014
Trade recevables € 7119655 € 7,097919
Less Provision for imparment (94,980) (33,700)
Trade recewvables, net of provisions € 7024675 €& 7,064,219

The estimated fair value of the Company's trade receivables were €7,024,675 and €7,064,219 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively

These past due but not mpaired trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
with no hustary of default whose aging as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as fallows

2018 2014
Performing trade recetvables € 5388739 € 4452132
Past due trade receivables - -
Less than 3 months 1,034,104 1,847,704
3-6 months 187,900 753,863
6-9 months 22,387 44 220
9-12 months - -
More than 12 months 486,525 -
Impatred frade receivables (94,980) (33,700)

€ 7024675 € 7,064,219

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, trade receivables of €94,980 and €33,700, respectively, were
impaired Receivables considered impaired had aging three months or less Throughout the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company's estimate of the recoverability of its accounts
recevable improved based on prevailing factors which led to a decrease in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables recorded at December 31, 2015 Actual recovernes of trade

recevables which were previously considered impatred were not significant during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014

37




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(amounts presented in Euro (€) unless otherwise staled)

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of the Company's trade receivables

excluding provision for impairment was denorminated in the following currencies

2015
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 2,682,514 € 2682514
Swiss franc 19,246 17,775
Bntish pound sterling 312,536 424,162
Norwegian krone 2,526,982 262,823
Polish zloty 429,403 100,672
United states dollar 3,129,970 2,869,460
Danish krone 2,272,673 304,415
Swedish krona 4,208,212 457,934
€ 7,119,655
2014
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 3,080,321 € 3,080,321
Swiss franc 33,885 28,178
Bntish pound sterl:ing 260,976 333,496
Norwegian krone 2,100,970 231,931
Polish zZloty 503,382 116,963
United states doilar 3,046,678 2,506,503
Darush krone 2,598,364 348,997
Swedish krona 4,285,778 451,530
,097 91

Movemnents in the Company's proviston for impaimment of trade recaivables during the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows

At December 31, 2013

Reversal of proviston for impairment of frade recevables

At December 31, 2014

Accounts receivable wnte off

Prowision for (recovery of provision for) impairment of trade recevables
At December 31, 2015
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€ 35762
(2,062)

33,700
(39,789)

101,068

€ 94,980
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18.

20

2.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Escrow recewvables (payables) € {89,912} € -
Security deposits 110,145 86,982
Other current assets 149,114 104,931
Prepaid expenses and other current assets € 169,347 € 191,813

Escrow receivables are related to reambursements due from Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc and
affihates under the terms of the iIndemnification arrangements related to the acquisition of the
Interventional Products Business

Indirect Taxes

Indirect taxes recewvable and indirect taxes payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

] 7] Warwey Tanee T =] A
e ST Wk FRC AN L] o o« 4304 4 mer o« 1847w 113 & N 4 119217 ¢ IMI & ¢ S5 o a1
e ert et payshi pum—lll.-N i ! —) Bt — 808 TPy —rL
...,..:.':"""" 1] LF: 3 [P r] [100 891} (arisn _ grysen 131 ) 1 Ros s sy 213388
1 Bt S MR SR [ 4} s, ] LIY) ] X1
irnel mewn poyunle L L] 2 mmy 1o & 1TIST 4 Zau3 4 L3 ELF T | nms_ o L] od e

ta

I L =" | =T Finlend’ n-':,'—-!'%:-—ﬁq Franta | =3 -t Towd
Tt ags oy & e & 1m0 & e & 10007 § men & wWr;s £ s 4 e & LE N (LR T3 1
Inaves 8 poyms [T (3] {1s0mn {ussn _ omes  gseTeR 291200 {51861 ran L+ Ty TR
t-uli:ll::lm.“. R el 1] hiw {100 7o) (L ATD N I:_ [1lk] (X1, ] (<11 2L] (1] {4707y
Indeosi lnr10 recokabis Tiea Bm § o 1w
et s v payusle [ i 2% € NN LIS § TN & Fwed £ 1in « M7 T T

Cash at Banks

Cash at banks at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was located in the following terntones

2015 2014

Netherlands € 411,691 € 274,756
Belgium 122,685 59,198
Germmnany 542,228 452,995
Sweden 844,022 496,878
Denmark 839,374 276,386
Finland 348,006 505,327
France 138,118 267,012
Norway 252,225 243,416
Spain 211,155 198,319
Switzerland 1,034,189 2,507,040

Cash at banks € 4743893 € 5331327
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22,

Share Capital and Share Premium

Share Capital
Share capital as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of

2015 2014
Authorized
80,000 ordinary shares of €1 each € 90,000 € 90,000
Issued and fully paid
18,000 ordinary shares of €1 each € 18,000 € 18,000

As of the Company's date of mncarporation, all 1Issued share capital (18,000 ordinary shares) was
fully paid

Share Premium
Share premium as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of

2015 2014
Authonized € 8487104 € B,487,104
Related Party Promissory Note Discount 2,079,804 1,660,254
Issued and fully paid € 10,567,008 € 10,147,358

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Argon Medicat Devices Singapore Pte Ltd , a
Singapore Corporation, which the Company regards as its intermediate holding company,
capitalized the Company with an additronal €6,535,224 through a noncash conversion of payables
due to related parties into share prermiurn This noncash conversion was recognized at the book
value of the payables due to related parties which were effectively settled and cancelled in
connection with the transaction

Movements in the Company's share capital during the year ended December 31, 2015 were

Share Share

Capital Premium
At December 31, 2014 € 18,000 € 10,147 358
At December 31, 2015 € 18,000 € 10,567,008
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23.

24

Stock Option Plan

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, the directors of the Company’s ultmate parent
company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, inc - amended the terms of the Argon Medical Devices
Helding, Inc 2010 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan®) to allow participation by non-U S based persons
Dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, zero options to purchase shares in Argon
Medical Devices Holding, inc , were granted to an employee of the Company The respective
issuances of units vest over a five year penod The farr value of the stock option plan 18 accounted
for in hne with IFRS 2 The expense related to vested options are €15,300 and €12,500 for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 The Company s not directly charged for the
immatenal stock compensation expense of these stack options by Argon Medical Devices

Holding, Inc within the respective penods This cost I1s considered in the transfer pricing and
management expense rate charged to Argon Medica!l Devices BV and Subsidianes from Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc

Borrowings

Borrowings as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of

2015 2014
Loan to Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 8130938 € 6927663
Loan to PBN Medical Denmark A/S 2,461,250 -
Total borrowings € 10,592,186 € 6927663

On April 12, 2013, the Company entered in $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an affihate of the Company's ultimate holding company The
promissory note matures Apnl 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yield
(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium This related party
borrowing I1s recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
camred at amortized cost The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 (s
€8,130,936 (2014 — €6,927,663) Due to the related party nature of the Company’s outstanding
borrowings, no transachion costs or other direct fees were incurred regarding the establishment of
the promissory note

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affilate of the Company's ulimate holding
company, which converted its short-term payable initially recognized m conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015 The promissory note
malures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% {payable annually) and can
be repaid at any time without penafty or premium This related party borrowing 1s recognized
intially at fair value, net of ransaction costs incurred, and subsequently carned at amortized cost
The fair vaiue of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 15 €2,461,250 Due to the related
parly nature of the Company’s outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note
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25  Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Accrued outsource services € 232972 € 219,090
Accounts payable 310,237 253,287
Accrued transporiation expenses 138,630 152,808
Accrued professional fees 640,342 582,297
Accrued bonuses 247,764 305,979
Accrued compensated absences 424,743 468,242
Accrued commisston 32,156 57,690
Others 195,722 242,416

€ 2222566 € 2,281,809

26. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions and balances were camed out with affiliates of the Company's ulttmate
holding company, Argon Medical Devices Halding, Inc , dunng the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Purchases of goods
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 14507555 € 17,579,774
Argon Crnitical Care Systems Singapore, Pte Lid 13,580,404 10,531,350
Royalty expense
Argon Medical Davices, inc 228,247 240,405
Argon Medical Devices Bigcoatings Corp 167,493 219,271

Goods bought from affilates of the Company's ultimate holding company, Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc , are bought under a global transfer pricing arrangement which generally targets that
the manufacturer earn prefils ranging from cost plus five percent (cost + 5%) to cost plus
seventy-five percent (cost +75%) while allowing the Company to eam profits ranging from three
percent {3%) to five percent {5%) of sales

Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an affikate of the Company's ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and recognizes royalty
expense when these products are sold which are paid to affillates monthly Dunng the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized €395,740 and €459,676, respectively, in
royalty expense associated with the sale of these licensed products
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The Company has a supply arrangernent with Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Comp (fik/a
Angiotech Biocoatings Corp ), an affthate of the Company’s ultimate holding company, that requires
the Company pay a royslty based on the Company's sale of certain products across Europe, the
Middle East, and Afnca, which utilize intellectual property which 1s controlied by the affihate

The Company recognizes royalty expense when the licensed products are sold which s paid to
affiliates monthly Dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized
€187,493 and €219,271, respectively, In royalty expense assocated with the sale of these licensed
products

Addtionaily, certain employees of the Company’s ultimate holding company, Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc and its affifiates devote a portion of thewr time to performing human
resources, |T, payroll, accounts payable, and other functions on benhalf of the Company in the
normal course of business The Company is not directly charged for these services by Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc or its affiliates, instead, the cost of these services 1s one factor,
among many, used to determine the pnce paid to purchase inventones from affiliates under
the Company's global fransfer pricing arrangement in place for all affilates of Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the following related party receivables and payables were

outstanding
2015 2014
Receivables from related parties
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte Ltd € - € 11458607
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S 28,000 -
Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte Ltd 18,000 18,000
Total recevables due from related parties € 46,000 € 1,163,607
Payables to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 3070637 € 8,526,012
Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte Ltd 1,993,701 -
PBN Med:cals Denmark A/S - 10,202,349
Argan Medical Devices Biocoatings Corp 56,717 -
Others - 332
Total payables due to related parties € 5121055 € 18,728,693
Loan to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 8130936 € 6,927,663
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S 2,461,250 -
Total related party promussory note € 10,592,186 € 6,927,663

Receivables from Argen Medical Devices, Inc arose mainly as a result of cash collections from
sales transactions in penods prior to January 1, 2012 which was remitted to Argon Medical
Devices, inc in lieu of the Company These recevables were repaid in full dunng the year ended
December 31, 2015 Proceeds from the repayment of these recevables were used to fund the
acquisition disclosed in Note 2 and therefore been presented as a financing activity within the
consolidated statements of cash flows
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Receivables due from Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte Ltd are for expenditures made by
the Company on its behalf which are rembursable

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices, In¢ anse mainly from the purchase of goods, the
oblhgation to resmburse Argon Medical Devices, Inc for payments made by Argon Medical
Devices, Inc directly to the Company’s vendors, and as a result of the royalty arangement
descnbed above These payables are generally due two (2) to six (6) months after the date of
purchase, and do not bear interest

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte Ltd anse mainly from the purchase of
goods, are generally due two (2) to six (6) months after the date of purchase, and do not bear
interest During the year ended December 31, 2014, Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte Ltd, a
Singapore Corporation, which the Cempany regards as its intermediate holding company,
capitahized the Company with an additional €6,535,224 through a noncash conversion of payables
due to related parties into additional share premium which has been classified as share premium in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and contnbutes to the significant decrease in the
outstanding balance at December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013

Payables due to Medical Device Technologees, Inc , PBN Medicals Denmark A/S and Argon
Medical Devices Danmark A/S anse mainly from the purchase of goods A substantial portion of
these outstanding balances were assumed upon the acquisition of the Interventional Products
Business as disclosed in Note 2 and 15 significantly aged Although these ebligations are long past
therr initial due dates, the Company Intends to settle these obligations in the ordinary course of
business using funds generated from its operations

Payables due to Argon Medical Devices Biocoatings Corp anse pnmarnly as a result of the royalty
arrangement descrnbed above, are due monthly, and do not bear interest

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company entered in a promissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,453) with Argon Medical Devices, Inc The
promissory note matures Apnl 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% weld
(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premmum  This related party
borrowing 1s recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 13 €8,130,936 and €6,927.663, respectively

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Denmark A/S (PBN), an affiliate of the Company’s ultimate holding
company, which converted its short-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acquisition of Argon Medtical Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015 The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% (payable annually} and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium This related party borrowing 1s recognized
inthialfy at fair value, net of transachon costs incurred, and subsequently carned at amortized cost
The fair value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 1s €2,461,250 Due 1o the related
party nature of the Company’s outstanding borrowings, no transacton costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note
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28
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Management Board

The Company regards its Management Board, as defined by the Company's Articles of
Assoclation, as key management of the Company During the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014, \wo (2) persons, were reprasentad on the Management Board The Dutch cltizen on
the Company's Management Board, who is an employee and Director of tha Company, received
approximately €114,000 and €111,000 in total remuneration during years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively The majonty of the remuneration noted ahove was salary and bonus

The second member of the Company's Management Board, who is alse a direclor of the Company,
15 an employee of an affihate of the Company’s ullimate holding company, Argon Medical

Devices, [nc. All remuneration pad to this person was bore by that affillale and none charged to
the Company during the years ended December 31, 2015 an 2014

Commitments

Operating Lease Commitments

ihe Company leases office space In various countnes throughout Europe and centam equipment
under non-cancelable operaling leases which expire at vanious dates through 2020 Undar these
|leases, the Company may be llable for certain other costs, including but net imited to, common
area maintenance chargas or real eslate taxes

Durlng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, tolal rent expense under non-cancelable
operaling leases was spproximately, €473,935 and €436,225, respectively

Tha future aggregate minimum lease paymenis under non-cancelable operating leases are as
follows

20158 2014
Within a year € 481,474 € 329,232
Between iwo and five years 1,197,504 771,595
More than five years 251,141 124,727

€ 1,930,119 € 1,225,564

Subsequent Events

The Company has evalualed the Impact of subsequeni events through June 30, 2016 the date the
consolidaled financlal statements were made avattable to be issued The directors of Sharon
McNally and Alke Aldo van Salkema-Boer authonzed the financia! statements to bo 1ssucd on the
below noted date

un N llys e

Sharon McNally Alke Allda van Solkema-Boer
Director Direttor
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
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Net sales (Note 2)
Cost of sales (Note 3}

Gross profit
Seliing, general and administrative expenses (Note 4, 5, 6)
Cperating profit

Interest expense, net {(Note 7)
Foreign currency losses
Total finance losses

Share of resuits of subsichares (Note 10)
Income (loss) before taxation
Income taxes (Nota 8)
Total income (loss) after taxation for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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2015 2014
€ 19,534,568 € 19,431,406
12,910,152 13,075,661
6,624,416 6,355,745
6,198 384 6,000,740
426,032 355,005
516,599 410,507
1,462,434 1,371,314
1,979,033 1,761,921
7,692,072 (406,642)
6,139,071 (1,833 558)
184,884 143,910
€ 5954187 € (1,977,468)
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Assets

Noncurrent assets
Property and equipment, net (Note 9)
Investment in subsidianes (Note 10)

Current assets
Inventories (Note 11)
Trade receivables {Note 12)
Receivables due from related partes (Note 20)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 14)
Indirect taxes recevable (Note 13)
Income taxes receivable (Note 8)
Cash at bank (Note 15}

Total assets
Equity and Liabilities

Equity attnbutable to owner of the company
Share capital (Note t16)
Share premium (Note 16)
Accumulated earrings
Total equity
Noncurrent labidities
Loan due to related parties (Note 18, 20)

Current habilities
Payables due to related parties (Note 20)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 19)
Indirect taxes payable (Note 13)
Income tax payable {Note 8)
Total current habilites

Total habilities
Total equity and liabihties

2015 2014
€ 13,305 € 2,600
25,114,128 17,422,056
25,127,433 17,424,665
4,024 589 2,714,936
3,611,734 2,882,482
18,000 1,163,607
128,475 146,257
67,054 73,639
- 103,748
2,331,325 939 427
10,181,177 8,024,098
€ 35,308,610 € 25448,761
€ 18,000 € 18,000
10,719,462 10,147,358
€ 6,887,200 933,013
17,624,662 11,098,371
10,692,186 6,927,663
5,243,139 5,658,181
1,194,993 1,169,256
321,278 336,455
332,352 258,836
7,091,762 7,422,728
17,683,948 14,350,391
€ 35,308,610 € 25,448,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cocmpany Statements of Changes in Equity
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Attributable to Owner of the Company

Share Share Accumutated Total

{amounts presentsd in Euro (€} unless cthermsne sisted) Capltal Premium Eamings Equlty
Balances at January 1, 2014 € 18000 € 10147358 € 2 910,481 € 13,075,839
Comprehensive (088 - - {1,877 468) {1,077.468)
Balances at Decamber M, 2014 € 18,000 € 10147358 € 8333 € 11089271
Balances at January 1, 2018 € 18000 € 10147358 € 633,013 € 11,098,271
Retatad party promissory note discount - 572,104 - 572,104
Comprehensve income - - & 5954 187 § B54 187
Balances at December 31, 2015 € 18000 € 10719482 € 6887200 € 17 624 682

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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1.

General Infoermation

The financial statements of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V are prepared in accordance
with the legal requirement of Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code The Company has made use
of the possibility based on Article 362, paragraph 8, Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code to
prepare company financial statements based on the accounting policies used for the consolidated

financial statements

Subsidianes of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V are presented using the equity method
The equity value of subsidiaries compnses the cost of Argon’s share In the net assets of the
subsidiary, plus Argon’s share in income or losses since acquisition, less dividends received
Gooedwill paid upon acquisition of an investment 1n a substdiary, joint venture or associate 1s
included in the net equity value of the investment and is not shown separately on the face of the

balance sheet

Net Sales

Net sales reported for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were generated by the

following registerad branch offices and legal entity

2015 2014
Branch
Belgium € 1184265 € 1,132,834
Denmark 1,319,274 1,327,344
Finland 1,399,016 1,498,096
Germany 4,512,817 4,325,324
Sweden 2,158,310 2,314,353
10,573,682 10,597,951
Legal entity
Netherlands (Argon Medical Devices Netherlands BV ) 8,960,886 8,833,455
€ 15534568 € 19,431,406

Net sales to distnbutors generated by the Company's representatives in France, Greece, and the

United Kingdom are recognized by the Company’s Netherlands legal entity

Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were compnsed of
€12,910,152 and €13,075,661, respectively, of inventories that were sold in sales transactions
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4, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported 1n 2015 and 2014 were comprised of the
following components

2018 2014

Employee costs € 2,580,782 € 2,560,597
Transportation expenses 632,197 635,317
QOutsourced fogistics and admiisirative services expenses 1,148,657 1,135,690
Auditing and taxation services (Independent auditor's remuneration) 297,866 297 244
Consulting services 67,426

Operating lease expenses 286,226 271,480
Royalty expense 186,032 240,405
Travel and entertainment 215,978 215,042
Commission 303,367 355,074
Meetings and seminars 103,598 98,045
Marketing and advertising expenses 54,185 55421
Communication and information technology 24,360 22,259
Office admnistration 58,341 61,557
Registration 33,055 22,358
Legal services - 3,653
Depreciation 5,517 4493
Provision for impaiment of trade receivables 89,013 8,615
Other expenses 100,383 13,480

€ 6,168,384 € 6,000,740

independent auditor's remuneration

Audt services
PwC Netherlands € 36,772 € 35,875
Other PwC Offices 110,425 68,861
Sub-total 147,147 104,736
Taxation services
PwC Netherlands 75,430 14,000
Other PwC Offices 75,239 99,385
Sub-total 150,669 113,385
Consuliing services Non-Netherlands PwC Offices 37,501 62,979

€ 335,367 € 281,100

The Audit and Tax fees listed above relate to the procedures apphed to the Company and its
consohdated group entites by the external independent audstar and accounting firm
PncewaterhouseCoopers as referred to in Section 1, subsection 1 of the Dutch Accounting Firms
Oversight Act (Dutch acronym Wia) Audi and Tax services were all performed by
PncewaterhouseCoopers global network

Consulting services relate to advisory services rendered by the Company's independent auditors to
adwise the Company on human resources, payroll, employee benefits arrangements and other
matters and are also performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers global network
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Information Regarding Employees

Employee costs for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were compnised of the following
significant components

2015 2014
Salaries € 1481364 € 1,484,950
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 261,541 250,825
Social security costs 432 857 399,506
Bonus 226,399 272,573
Compensated absences 95,346 80,577
Other employee costs 83,275 72,166

€ 2,580,782 € 2,560,597

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was

2015 2014
Selling and distnbution 25 24
Supply chamn 2 1
27 25

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the number of persons (including the director) employed by
the Company working in the Netherlands were three (3}

Included i pension costs and social secunty costs above are the Company's expenses for its
participation in defined contnbution benefit plans as well as the cost associated with the Campany's
cbhgation to make contnbutions to government-sponsored employee retrement programs in
certain countries

Royalty Expense

Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an affihate of the Company's ulimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middle East, and Afnea, and recognizes royally
expense when these products are sold which are pad to affilates monthly During the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized €186,032 and €240 405, respectively, in
royalty expense associated with the sale of these licensed products

Interest Expense, Net
Interest expense, net, for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, was €516,599 and

€410,607, respectively, and arose pnimary as a result of interest incurred on related party
borrowings {(Note 18)
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Income Taxes

Income tax expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were
compnsed of the following significant components

20156 2014
Current income tax
Current Income tax on profits for the year € 184,884 € 143,810
Total current income tax 184,884 143,910
Total income tax expense € 184,884 € 143,910

The iIncome tax expense recognized on the Company’s profit before income taxes differs from the
theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average mncome tax rate applicable to
profits before income taxes as follows

2016 2014
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit before tax multipled by weighted average rate of 3 16%
and -10% at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively € 55734 € (17,582)
Permanent nondeductble expenses 129,150 161,492
Total current Income tax expense € 184,884 € 143,910

The Company's weighted average tax rate of 3 16% and -10 0% at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, differs from the tax rate of 25 00% applicable on taxable profits in excess of €200,00C
since the Company's taxable profits up to €200,000 were subject to tax at a lower rate of 20 00%
apphcable for entities tncorporated in the Netherlands

There were no income taxes recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity during
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

The Company periodically remits payments to the tax authonties for its estimated income taxes in
those junsdictions where the Company has income tax obkgations Payments made in excess of
the Company's iIncome tax obligation for the penod are recognized as income taxes recewvable and
income tax obligations for the penod In excess of payments made are recognized as income taxes
payable As of Degember 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had income taxes receivables and
payables of €0 and 332,352, respectively, and €103,748 and €258,836, respectively
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9. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, which consists pnmarily of computer
and software, consists of
2015 2014
Beginming net book value € 2609 € 7,102
Cost
Addtitions 16,213 -
Disposal - -
At December 31 18,822 7,102
Depreciation
Charge for the year 5,817 4,493
Disposal et -
At December 31 5517 4,493
Net book value € 13,305 € 2,609
10  Investment in Subsidianes
Movements in the Company's investment in subsidianes dunng the year ended December 31,
2015 were
At December 31, 2013 € 17,828,698
Share of resuits of subsidianes (406,642)
At December 31, 2014 17,422,056
Share of results of subsidiaries 7,692,072
At December 31, 2015 € 25114,128
14 Inventories

Inventones as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Finished goods € 4,245,787 € 2,781,169
Less Excess and obsolescence provision {225,198) {66,233}

€ 4024589 € 2714936
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12.

Movements in the Company’s excess and obsolescence provision of inventones dunng the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows

At December 31, 2013 € 135,838
Inventory scrap (195,231)
Provision for (recovery of provision for) excess and ohsolete inventones 125,626
At December 31, 2014 66,233
Inventory scrap (69,991)
Provision for (recovery of provision for) excess and obsolete inventones 228,956
At December 31, 2015 € 225,198

Trade Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, which are due within one year, consist of

2015 2014
Trade receivables € 3714479 € 2924157
Less Provision for mpairment {102,685) {41,675)
Trade recetvables, net of provisions € 3611,734 € 2882482

The estimated fair value of the Company's trade receivables were €3,611,734 and €2,882,482 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively

These past due but not impaired trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
with no history of default whose aging as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows

2045 2014
Performing trade receivables € 2970960 € 2292980
Past due trade receivables - -
Less than 3 months 533,172 561,859
3-6 months 187,900 25,008
6-9 months 22,387 44,220
9-12 months - -
More than 12 months - -
Impaired trade receivables (102,685) (41,675)

€ 3611734 € 2882482




Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V.
Notes to Company Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

{amounts presented in Euro (€) unless oftherwise stated)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, trade receivables of €102,685 and €41,675, respectively, were
impared Recewables considered impaired had aging three months or less Throughout the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company's estimate of the recaverabiity of its accounts
recewvable improved based on prevailing factors which led to a decrease in the prowision for
imparrment of trade recervables recorded at December 31, 2015 as described below Actual
recoveries of trade receivables which were previously considered impaired were not significant
dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of the Company’s trade receivables
excluding provision for impairment was denominated in the following currencies

2015
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 1440069 € 1,440,069
Swiss franc 19,246 17,775
British pound sterling 307,896 418,001
Norwegian krone 191,765 19,945
Polish zloty 429 403 100,572
United states dollar 1,437,018 1,317,192
Danish krone 968,812 129,768
Swedish krona 2,491,252 271,097
€ 3,714,419
2014
Local
Currency Euro (€)
Euro 1,493,582 € 1,493,582
Swiss franc 33,895 28,178
Bntish pound stering 256,721 328,059
Norwegian krone 99,240 10,855
Polish zloty 503,382 116,963
United states dollar 635,871 523,132
Danish krone 1,311,677 176,177
Swedish krona 2,345,500 247,111

€ 2,924,157
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13

14

Movements in the Company's provision for impaiment of trade recewvables dunng the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows

At December 31, 2013 € 33,060
Reversal of provision for mpairment of trade receivables 8,615
At December 31, 2014 41,675
Accounts receivable write off (38,003)
Provision for {recovery of provision for) impairment of trade receivables 99,013
At December 31, 2016 € 102,685
Indirect Taxes

Indirect taxes recewvable and indirect taxes payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015

Netheriznds Belglum Denmark Finlzad Gecmany Sweden Total
tndirect taxes receivable € 62656 € 24304 € 4353 € 142 € 80389 € T8 € 180 766
Indiract taxas payable {19 805) 7129 {81.956) {142 087) {33812 (434 935)
Indirect taxas raceivable
[payabie) net 52 656 4 399 (12776) (60 524} (61658) {126 280) (254 223
indkrect taxes recevable 52 656 4399 - 67 055
indirect taxes payadle € € - € 72718 £ 60 524 € 651608 € 126280 € 321278
2014
Netherands Belglum Deanmark Finland Garmany Sweden Total
Indirect taug's recelvable € TJas 485 € 3750 € 526 € 1180 € 773 € 9246 € 832,638
Indire et taxes payable [681 B4E) (] mg {82 354) {74 537} {141 832y (23 043) (4] 035 451)
Indirec! taxes recalvabie
{payable} nel 73 635 (2 889 {77 118) {73 407} (54 144) (118 797) (262 B16)
indirect taxes raceivable 73638 - - . TI638
Indirect taxas payabls £ . € 2889 € 7718 € 73407 € B4 144 & 118797 € 136 485

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Secunty deposits € 79,811 € 79,811
Other current assels 48,664 66,446
Prepaid expenses and other current assets € 128,475 € 146,257
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15

16.

17

18.

Cash at Banks

Cash at banks at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was located in the following terntones

2015 2014

Netherlands € 411,691 € 274,756
Belgium 122,685 99,198
Germany 352,330 168,681
Sweden 584,831 163,276
Denmark 699,742 26,961
Finland 150,046 206,555

Cash at banks € 2331325 € 939,427

Share Capital and Share Premium

Detalls of the Company's share capital and share premium are disclosed in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements

Stock Option Plan

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, the directors of the Company's ulhimate parent
company - Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc - amended the terms of the Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc 2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Plan”) to allow participation by non-U 8 based persons
Dunng the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, zero options to purchase shares in Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc , with an estmated fair value of €15,300 and €12,500, respectively,
were granted to an employee of the Company who provide services to the Company -The
Company 1s not directly charged for the estimated fair value, or cost, of these stock options by
Argen Medical Devices Halding, Inc , instead, the estimated fair value, or cost, of these stock
options s one factor, among many, used to determine the price paid to purchase inventones from
affiiates under the Company's global transfer pricing arrangement in place for al! affiliates of Argen

Medica! Devices Holding, Inc
Borrowings

Borrowings as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of

2018 214
Loan to Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 8130936 € 6,927,663
Loan to PBN Medical Denmark A/S 2,461,250 -
Total borrowings € 10,592,186 € 6,927,663
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19.

20.

On April 12, 2013, the Company entered in $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,463) promissory note with
Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an effiliate of the Company's ulumate holding company. The
promissory note matures Apnl 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yield
(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium  This related party
borrowing 15 recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
camed at amortized cost The farr value of the promissory note as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 1s €8,130,936 and €6,927,663, respectively Due to the related parly nature of the
Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction cosls or other direct fees were incured
regarding the establishment of the promissory note

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of

2015 2014
Accrued outsource services € 187,162 € 171,180
Accounts payable 65,121 97,554
Accrued transportation expenses 80,812 104,898
Accrued professional fees 254 487 239,742
Accrued bonuses 216,537 257,028
Accrnued compensated absences 224,588 202,092
Accrued comrmussion 32,156 57,690
Others 133,730 39,072

€ 1,194993 € 1,169,256

Related Party Transactions

The following transactions and balances were camed out with affilates of the Company's ultmate
holding company, Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc , duning the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Purchases of goods
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 584,555 € 613,859
Argon Cntical Care Systems Singapore, Ple Ltd 13,580,404 10,531,350
Royalty expense
Argon Medical Devices, Inc 186,032 240,405

Goods bought from affitates of the Company's ultimate holding company, Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc , are bought under a global transfer pricing arrangement which generaily targsts that
the manufacturer earn profits ranging from cost plus five percent {cost + 5%) to cost plus seventy-
five percent (cost +75%) while allowing the Company to earn profits ranging from three percent
(3%} to five percent (5%) of sales
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Argon Medical Devices, Inc , an affiliate of the Company's ultimate holding company, has a royalty
arrangement with a third party that requires the third party be paid a royalty on global sales of
licensed products based on the profitability of the associated products The Company offers these
licensed products for sale across Europe, the Middie East, and Africa, and recogmizes royalty
expense when these products are sold which are paid to affilates monthly Dunng the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized €186,032 and €240,405, respectively, In
royalty expense associated with the sale of these licensed products

Additionally, certain employees of the Company's uttmate holding company, Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc and its affiliates devote a portion of therr time to performing human
resources, IT, payroll, accounts payable, and other functions on behalf of the Company in the
normmal course of business The Company 1s not directly charged for these services by Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc or s affilates, instead, the cost of these services s one factor,
among many, used to determune the price paid to purchase inventories from affiliates under
the Company's globa! transfer pncing arrangement in place for all affikates of Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the following related party recewvables and payables were

outstanding
2015 2014
Recelvables from related parties
Argon Cntical Care Systems Singapore Pte Ltd € - € 11458607
Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pie Ltd 18,000 18,000
Total receivables due from related parties € 18,000 € 1,163,607
Payables to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 399,799 € 16,143,438
Argon Cntical Care Systems Singapore Pte Ltd 1,993,701 -
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S - 2,584,923
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S 2,180,690 -
Argon Medical Devices SARL 331,925 -
Argon Medical Devices GmbH 189,671 -
Argon Medical Devices S L 118,544 -
Others 28,809 332
Total payables due to related parttes € 5243139 € 18,728,693
Loan due to related parties
Argon Medical Devices, Inc € 8130936 € 6,927,663
PBN Medicals Denmark A/S 2,461,250 -
Total related party promisscry note € 10,592,186 € 6,927,663

Receivables due from Argon Critical Care Systems Singapore Pte Lid anses from advanced
payment of purchase of goods

Receivables due from Argon Medical Devices Singapore Pte Lid are for expanditures made by
the Company on its behalf which are rembursable
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Payables due to Argon Medical Devices, Inc anse mainly from the purchase of goods, the
obhgation to reimburse Argon Medical Dewvices, Inc for payments made by Argon Medical
Devices, Inc directly to the Company’s vendors, and as a result of the royalty arangement
descnbed above These payables are generally due two (2) to six (6) months after the date of
purchase, and do not bear interest

Payables due to Argon Cntical Care Systems Singapore Pte Ltd arnise manly from the purchase of
goods, are generally due two (2) to six (6) months after the date of purchase, and do not bear
nterest Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013 Argen Medical Devices Singapore Pte Lid , a
Singapore Corporation, which the Company regards as its intermediate holding company,
capitalized the Company with an additional €6,535,224 through a noncash conversion of payables
due to related parties into additional share premium which has been classified as share premium in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and contributes to the significant decrease in the
outstanding balance at December 31, 2015 compared to December 21, 2014

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in short term promissory notes with its subsidiaries
Argon Medical Devices Danmark A/S, Argon Medical Devices SARL, Argon Medical Devices
GmbH and Argon Medical Devices S L with prnincipal balances of DKK17,000,000 (€2,277,861),
€350,000, €200,000 and €125,000, respectively, to pay part of its outstanding trade payables to
Argon Medical Devices, Inc The promissary notes mature December 31, 2018, bear interest at a
coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yield payable upon matunity These related party borrowings are
recognized inihially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carned at
amortized cost As of Decemnber 31, 2015, the farr values of the promissory notes are €2, 180,690,
€331,925, €189,671 and €118,545, respectively

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company entered in a promissory note with a
principal balance of $10,002,000 USD (€7,265,453) with Argon Medical Davices, Inc  The
promissory note matures Apnl 12, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% and a 6 5% yield
(payable monthly), and can be repaid at any time without penalty or premium  This related party
borrowang 1s recogrized inttially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost The far vafue of the pramissory note as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 1s €8,130,936 and €6,927,663, respectively

On December 31, 2015, the Company entered in $3,142,000 USD (€2,880,900) promissory note
with PBN Medical Devices Benmark A/S (PBN), an afiilate of the Company's ultmate holding
company, which converted its shori-term payable initially recognized in conjunction with the 2014
acguisition of Argon Medical Devices Danmark ApS to long-term as at 2015 The promissory note
matures December 31, 2018, bears interest at a coupon rate of 1 00% (payable annually) and can
be repaid at any time without penalty or premium This related party borrowing 1s recognized
inthially at fair value, net of transaction cosis incurred, and subsequently carned at amortized cost
The farr value of the promissory note as of December 31, 201515 €2,461,250 Due to the related
party nature of the Company's outstanding borrowings, no transaction costs or other direct fees
were incurred regarding the establishment of the promissory note
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24. Management Board

The Company regards s Management Board, as defined by tha Company’s Adicles of
Association, as key management of the Company During the years ended Dacember 31, 2016
and 2014, two (2) persons, were represented on the Managemen! Board The Dutch citizen on
the Company’s Management Board, who Is an employes and Director of the Company, recewved
approximately €114,000 and €111,000 in total remuneration during years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively

The second member of the Company's Management Board, who is alsv a direclor of the Comnpany,
is an employao of an affiliate of the Company’s ultmate holding company, Argon Medical

Devices, Inc. All remuneration pald to this parson was bore by that affiliate and none charged to
tha Company during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

22, Commitments

Operaling Lease Commitments

Tho Company leases office space in varlous countries throughout Europe and cerlan equipment
under non cancelable operating leases which explce at various dates through 2020 Under these
leases, tha Company may be llable for cartein other costs, including but not limiled to, common
area maintenance charges or real estate taxes

Duning the years ended Dacembar 31, 2016 and 2014, tatal rent expense under non-cancelable
operating leases was approximalely, €286,226 and €271,490, respectivaly

The fulure aggregate mimmum lease paymenis under non-cancelable operating leases are as

follows®

2015 2014
Within a year € 287784 € 210,544
Between two and five years 852,458 714,087
More than five years 251,141 124,727

€ 1,391,381 € 1,049,358

\Q,mmm&% ‘/

Sharon McNally AlKe Alida van Solkema-Boer
Diractor Director
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2018

81




Other information

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2015

Provision in the articles of association governing the appropnation of profits

According to Article 11 of the articles of association the net profit for the year 1s at the free disposal of the
annual general meeting

Appropriation of result

The net income of €5,954,187 will be recorded within the Accumulated Eamings There 1s sufficient cash
flow from histoncal Accumulated Earmings 1o support future growth and operations of Argon Medical
Devices Netherlands BV and Subsidianes The Company's management board does not recommend
the payment of a dividend to the Company shareholders at this tme

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

The Company has evaluated the impact of subsequent events through June 30, 2016 the date the
consolidated financial statements were made available to be issued The directors of Sharon McNally
and Alke Ahda van Solkema-Baer authonzed the financial statements to be 1ssued on the below

noted date
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Independent auditor’s report

To the general meehng of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V and Subsidiaries

Report on the financial statements 2015

Our opinion

In our opinion:

) the accompanying consohdated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argon Medical Dewvices Netherlands B.V and Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
and of its result and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and
wath Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

. the accompanying company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V and Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
and of 1ts result for the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.

IVhat we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2015 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands
B V., Amsterdam (‘the company’). The financial statements include the consolidated financial
statements of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and 1ts subsidianies (together ‘the Group’) and
the company financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise.

) the consolidated statement of financa) position as at 31 December 2015;

. the following statements for 2015' the consclidated income statement, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows, and

. the notes, compnising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

The company financial statements compnse-

. the company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
. the company statement of 1ncome for the year then ended and changes 1n equity;
. the notes, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information
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The financial reporting framework that has been applied in: the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the consohidated
finaneial statements and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Duteh Civi} Code for the company financtal
statements,

The basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section ‘Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report.

We are independent of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V. and Subsidiaries 1n accordance with
the ‘Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants byj assurance-opdrachten’ (Vi0O) and
other relevant independence requirements in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with
the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA).

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion

Responsibilities of the directors

The directors are responsible for:

. the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part ¢ of Book 2 of the Duteh Civil Code, and for the preparation of the directors’
report 1n accordance with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for

» such internal control as the directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the
finanoal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going concern Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, the directors should prepare the financial statements using the going-concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to ligumidate the company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so. The directars should disclose events and circumstances that may
cast sigmficant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial
statements.

Cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility 15 to plan and perform an audit engagement to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit endence to provide a basis for our opimon. Our audit opinion aims to provide reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

Reasonable assurance is a high but not absolute level of assurance which makes 1t possible that we may
not detect all misstatements. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error They are considered to be
matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the finanaal statements

A more detailed description of our respansibilities 1s set out in the appendix to qur report

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V and Subsidiaries - Ref e0383325
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

QOur report on the directors’ report and the other information

Pursuant to the legal requirements of Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our

obhgation to report about the directors’ report and the other information).

. we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report,
to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this code,

and whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been
annexed;

. we report that the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, 1s consistent wath
the financial statements.

Amsterdam, 30 June 2016
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N V

o ——
——

P.WJ Middelhoven RA

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V and Subsidiaries - Ref * e0383325
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Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements
2015 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and
Subsidiaries

In addition to what 1s included in our auditor’s report, we have further set out in this appendix our
responsibihties for the audit of the financial statements and explained what an audit involves

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional sceptictsm throughout
the audit in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Qur audit
consisted, among other things of the following:

. Identifying and assessing the nisks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtaining audit enidence that 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opmnion The nsk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may nvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

. Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the aud:t 1o order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control.

. Evaluating the appropniateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors
. Concluding on the approprnateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting,

and based on the audit enndence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events and/or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report and are made in the context of our
opinion on the financial statements as a whole However, future events or conditions may cause
the company to cease to continue as a going concern

. Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transachons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Considenng our ultimate responsibility for the opimon on the company's consolidated financial
statements we are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit

In this context, we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures for components of
the group to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the finanecial
statements as a whole Deternining factors are the geographic structure of the group, the sigmficance
and/or risk profile of group entities or activities, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which the group operates. On this basis, we selected group entities for which an audit or
review of financial information or specific balances was cousidered necessary

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V' and Subsidiaries - Ref - €0383325
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the general meeting of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V and Subsidiaries

Report on the financial statements 2015

Our opinion

In our opimon

. the accompanying consohdated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argen Medical Devices Netherlands B V. and Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
and of its result and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union {(EU-IFRS) and
with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

. the accompanying company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
and of its result for the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Duteh Civil Code.

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2015 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands
B.V., Amsterdam (‘the company'). The financial statements include the consolidated financia)
statements of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V, and its subsidianes (together ‘the Group') and
the company financial statements,

The consolidated financial statements compnse:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at a1 December 2015;

. the following statements for 2015: the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
staternents of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows, and

. the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

The company financial statements comprise-

. the company statement of financial posihon as at 31 December 2015,
. the company statement of income for the year then ended and changes 1n equity,
. the notes, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information
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The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparaton of the finanaal statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the consolidated
financial statements and Part 9 of Bock 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the company financial
statements

The basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, tncluding the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section ‘Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report

We are independent of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidianes in accordance with
the “‘Verordening inzake de onafhankehijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten’ (ViO) and
other relevant independence requirements in the Netherlands Furthermore, we have complied with
the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our opinion

Responsibilities of the directors

The directors are responsible for.

. the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the directors’
report 1n accordance with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Ciwvil Code; and for

. such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going concern Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, the directors should prepare the financial statements using the going-concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to hiquidate the company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so The directors should disclose events and circumstances that may
cast sigmificant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial
statements

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to plan and perform an audit engagement to obtain sufficient and appropnate
audit evidence to provnide a basis for our opimon. Our audit opinion aims to provide reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

Reasonable assurance 15 a high but not absolute level of assurance which makes 1t possible that we may
not detect all misstatements Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered to be
matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements

A more detailed description of our responsibilities is set out in the appendix to our report

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and Subsidaries - Ref.. e0383325
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Our report on the directors’ report and the other informnation

Pursuant to the legal requirements of Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our

obligation to report about the directors’ report and the other information)

. we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report,
to the extent we can assess, has been prepared 1n accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this code,
and whether the information as required by Part ¢ of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been
annexed;

. we report that the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, 1s consistent with
the financial statements

Amsterdam, 30 June 2016
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V

NP
—

P w.J. Middelhoven RA

Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B V and Subsidiaries - Ref.- e0383325
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Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statemernits
2015 of Argon Medical Devices Netherlands B.V. and
Subsidiaries

In addition to what 1s included in our auditor’s report, we have further set out 1n this appendix our
responsibilitres for the audit of the financal statements and explained what an audit involves,

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit 1n accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, Our audit
consisted, among other thangs of the following.

. Identifying and assessing the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those
nsks, and obtaining audit enidence that 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may 1nvolve collusion, forgery, intentional ormissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

. Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 1 order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate i the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control

) Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pohicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors
. Concluding on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting,

and based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertamty exists
related to events and/or condittons that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability ta
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 1n the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report and are made in the context of our
opinion on the financial statements as a whole However, future events or conditions may cause
the company to cease 10 continue as a going concern

) Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation

Considering our ultimate responsibility for the opinion on the company’s consolidated financial
statements we are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

In this context, we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures for components of
the group to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole Determining factors are the geographic structure of the group, the significance
and/or risk profile of group entities or activities, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which the group operates. On this basis, we selected group entities for which an audit or
review of financial information or specific balances was considered necessary
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit
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